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| AM DELIGHTED WITH THE OUTSTANDING WORK

of our management team and employees worldwide.
Their efforts are restoring our company’s financial health
and the vitality of our brands, and preparing Gap Inc. for
long-term growth. Under the leadership of President and
CEO Paul Pressler, their progress is evident when

shopping the improved product assortments in our stores,
and when looking at our performance for fiscal 2003.

R DONALD G, FISHER

Lo oo shareholders

Gap Inc. celebrates its 35th anniversary in 2004, and I'm more
confident than ever about our prospects. With the company
stronger, I've decided to step down as Chairman in May 2004.
As | said when first announcing my decision late last year, | can't
think of a more appropriate time. | plan to stay on the Board as

a director, and will continue as an advisor and employee of the

company in the role of Founder and Chairman Emeritus,

The Board appointed Robert J. Fisher as our new non-executive
Chairman, effective following the company’'s annual meeting of
shareholders in May. The appointment was based on the
recommendation of the Board's Governance, Nominating and
Social Responsibility Committee; only independent directors
comprise the committee. Bob worked in various operating roles
in the company for 19 years before resigning in 1999. He has
served as a director since 1990.

In addition to maintaining separate Chairman and CEQ roles,
as we have since 1995, the company continues to strengthen
its corporate governance practices, including increasing Board
independence. In 2003, the Board named former Wal-Mart
executive Bob L. Martin as its Lead Independent Director, and

we added three new independent directors—former Starbucks
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Corporation executive Howard Behar; Meg Whitman, President
and CEQ of eBay, Inc.; and Jim Schneider, Senior Vice
President and CFO of Dell, Inc. I'm also pleased that Procter &
Gamble executive Jorge Montoya joined our Board in March
2004 &s an independent director.

Charles Schwab, a director since 19886, has decided not to
stand for re-election in 2004, As a director and former
Chairman of our Audit and Finance Committee, Mr. Schwab
has been a tremendous asset and a valued resource
throughout his tenure. On behalf of the Board and the
company, | thank him for his service.

When | think of our 35th anniversary, I'm encrmously proud
of our company’s heritage. But I'm even more excited about
our future. | created Gap with a simple idea: to make it easier
for customers, including myself, to shop for clothes they
wanted to wear. Today, more than ever, our company is
committed to making it easy for people to express their

personal style, while also delivering quality earnings and long-

A5l

Donald G. Fisher
Chairman and Founder

term value to our shareholders. O




IT'S BEEN A REMARKABLE YEAR.

We accomplished what we set out to
do, significantly improving our financial
performance and strengthening our
infrastructure to build a foundation for
long-term growth.

letter to sharehelders

FROM PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PAUL S. PRESSLER

QOur success has alvvaysf been driven by great product. That
hasn't changed. We havée incredibly talented teams of designers
and merchants at each of our brands. As we look 1o the growth
potential ahead of us, we are focused on supporting our world-
class design and merchéndising capabilities with world-class
operating capacity.

HIGHLIGHTS FROM Ol.TJR FINANCIAL TURNAROUND
|

+ Significant net sales and earnings increases: in fiscal
2003, our net sales grev;v to $15.9 billion, increasing 10
percent—deouble the prior year's growth rate. We flowed our
performance to the bott:orn line, doubling earnings for the year
to $1 billion, or $1.09 per share on a diluted basis. Through
the end of fiscal 2003, We generated six consecutive quarters
of year-over-year earningﬁs growth.

* Comparable store sajes growth: By the end of fiscal 2003,
we delivered 16 conseCLthive months of positive comparable

store sales, contributing to significant top-line growth.

i
(a) Cash flow before financing and|short-term investing activities is a non-GAAP measure
See reconciliation to GAAP measure on page 9

¢ Improved margins: By offering our customers better product
assortments and focusing on tighter inventory management, we
improved regular price selling and markdown margins. We ended
fourth quarter 2003 with $344 million less inventory than the prior
year. Gross margin was up almost four percentage points in fiscal
2003. And through year-end, we reported seven consecutive

quarters of year-over-year gross margin improvement.

* A healthier balance sheet: \We generated cash flow before
financing and short-term investing activities of $1.9 billion®@,
almost double the prior year, and ended fiscal 2003 with a cash
and short-term investments balance of $4.7 billion. We reduced
debt by $626 million, lowering our funded debt at year-end to
$2.8 billion, and we're committed to restoring our investment
grade credit ratings.

BUILDING OUR INFRASTRUCTURE FOR GROWTH

In fiscal 2003, we made great progress on building our
operational talent with new leadership in consumer insights,
human resources, information technology, international, cnline
and supply chain. These executives and their teams are
strengthening our core systems and processes across the
business.
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Gaining consumer insights

It alt begins with understanding our customers. Qur consumer
insights work takes some of the fashion risk—and the volatility
that comes with it—out of the business. Creating this strategic
capability has helped drive our turnaround, and today it's
influencing every aspect of the company—irom business
strategies and organic growth opportunities, to product
decisions and marketing campaigns.

In 2003, we conducted extensive research of the U.S. apparel
market, gaining broad and deep insights around customer
segments and market opportunities. To leverage valuable
knowledge from employees who are closest to our customers
and our product, we also began soliciting ongoing feedback

from our store managers.

\We've created a corporate consumer insights function to
centrally manage the work, and to develop tools to ensure that
the information is actionable for our teams. Our design,
merchandising and marketing teams have been energized using
the insights as a springboard for their creativity.
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We applied consumer insights to our brand positioning strategies,
turther differentiating each of our brands. Gap is re-engaging its
core style-conscious customers in the casual specialty apparel
market. Old Navy is more competitive in the value segment.
Banana Republic is more elevated, with a designer sensibility
targeting a more sophisticated fashion customer.

With heads of marketing now in place in each of our brands,
we've accelerated our progress on evolving our strategies to
better reach segmented target audiences. For example, Gap
and Banana Republic began separately targeting men and
women, while Old Navy launched different campaigns for
teens and families. For heoliday 2003, Old Navy also launched
its first campaign targeted to Hispanic customers. We will
continue to use consumer insights to help us increase the

frequency of our shoppers’ visits and to attract new customers.

Improving our supply chain and technology

We view our diverse, global sourcing base as a strong
competitive advantage. In 2004, we will focus on strengthening
our end-to-end supply chain, enhancing our flexibility to serve
the different quality, speed and cost needs of each brand or
product category.



. [ .
Our design and merchandising teams are working more closely

from the beginning of thel product development cycle, resulting in
a more efficient process and, over time, faster speed 1o market.

We will be building more strategic relationships with our
vendors, including sharir;g more planning and forecasting
information, to further Ie\{'erage our sourcing capabilities. We are
also piloting localization \'rjwitiatives, which will eventually enabie
us to provide better product assortments based on different
size, climate and style nejeds for various markets. All of this
work requires significantitechnology investments, necessary to
better manage our invem;tory throughout the pipeline.

From investing in technology, to paying down our debt, to
optimizing our stcre fleets, to tightly managing costs, we will
continue to focus on thej most efficient use of capital. We are

committed to making investments that create value for our

shareholders.

Near

s for the season.

EVOLVING HOW WE WORK

We believe that systemically shifting our culture, to better
balance the art and science of retail, is critical to long-term
business success.

As is common in the fashion industry, our teams tend to be
action-criented. They're accustomed to making decisions based
on intuition, and to working independently. While this results in
a remarkable ability to get things done, we want to be sure that
we are focused on the right things—those that will drive long-
term success. So we're working to balance our approach with
more planning, more consumer insights and more teamwork.

We're starting by ensuring that all of our employees have a
common understanding of Gap Inc.’s purpose, values and
strategies, and the actions we all need to take to align with
them. We're building this into our recruiting, performance
management, development and rewards systems, so it
becomes an integral part of how we work. We're evolving our
rewards philosophy to incorporate this new approach and to
more closely align our compensation plans with shareholder
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interests. For example, in 2004, our senior executives'

compensation plans will include the additional measures of cash
flow and economic profit. We’ve also strengthened our
commitment to nurturing talent, with a focus on building more
robust career development and training programs, so we can
continue to attract, retain and develop the best people.

As part of the company's values, we believe that commerce and
social responsibility don't have to be at odds, and we continue
to work to find ways to put them into balance. How we do
business is as important to us as what we do. You can read
more about our commitment to social responsibility on page 18.

CELEBRATING THE FIRST 35...
AND LOOKING TO THE NEXT 35

As | reflect on my first full year as Chief Executive, we made
tremendous progress in 2003 because of the passion,
dedication and commitment of our thousands of employees
worldwide. That energy and drive for growth has been part of
Gap Inc.'s heritage since Doris and Donald Fisher opened the
first Gap store in San Francisco in 1969,
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Our teams will drive our continued success, and we're working
hard to ensure that our culture supports and rewards the
behaviors that represent what our company believes in—a
collective spirit of exploration, creativity and teamwork based on
respect, integrity and balance. When focused on common goals,
our employees have shown they can produce exceptional results.

I'm proud that we've significantly improved the financial health
of our company and acquired the new skills needed to lead
our business forward. Building our infrastructure and shifting
the way we approach our work is setting us up for a
successtul future.

We are, and will continue to be, a growth company. As Gap
Inc. celebrates its 35th year in 2004, we share a common
aspiration 1o exceed the expectations of our employees, our
customers and our shareholders. I'm confident we will. O

Bt D R

Paul S. Pressler
President and Chief Executive Officer
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financial highlights

GAP INC. FISCAL 2003

IN 2003, WE MEASURED OUR

success against three financial metrics:
| earnings, cash flow and return on
invested capital. We delivered on each.
We stabilized our business, improved
the health of our balance sheet and
began building the capital necessary
to fuel longer-term growth. o
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52 Weeks Ended 52 Weeks Ended 52 Weeks Ended
Jan. 31, 2004 Feb. 1, 2003 Feb. 2, 2002
Operating Results ($ in millions)
Net sales $ 15,854 $ 14,455 $ 13,848
Percentage change year-to-year 10% 4% 1%
Earnings before income taxes $ 1,683 $ 800 $ 241
Percentage change year-to-year 110% 231% (83%)
Net earnings (loss) $ 1,030 $ 477 $ (8)
Percentage change yearto-year 116% N/A {(101%)
Cash Flows (in millions)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 2,171 $ 1,238 $ 1,335
Net cash used for investing activities (1,026) (604) {968)
Net cash (used for) provided by financing activities (1,939) 1,359 256
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash 28 27 (11)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and equivalents (766) 2,020 612
iLess: Net cash (used for) provided by financing activities (1,939) 1,359 256
Less: Purchases of short-term investments (1,202) (472) -
Less: Maturities and sales of short-term investments 442 159 -
Cash flow before financing and short-term investing activities (a) $ 1,933 3 974 $ 356
Per Share Data
Net earnings (loss)—diluted 3 1.09 $ 0.54 $ {0.01)
Cash dividends paid 0.09 0.09 0.09
Statistics
Net earnings (loss) as a percentage of net sales 6.5% 3.3.% {0.1%)
Return on average assets 10.2% 5.4% (0.1%)
Return on average shareholders’ equity 24.4% 14.3% (0.3%)
Current ratio 2.68:1 2111 1.48:1
Number of store locations open at year-end 3,022 3,117 3,097
Comparable store sales increase {decrease) percentage 7% {3%) {13%)
(a) Cash flow before financing and short-term investing activities is a non-GAAP measure. We believe cash flow before financing and short-term investing activities is an important metric, as it
Li?g:sgr;tasﬁznrﬁeasure of cash flow available to debtholders and shareholders. We use this metric internally, as we believe our sustained ability to grow this measure is an important driver of

GAP [NC. 2003 ANNUAL REPORT 9




WE ENDED FISCAL 2003 with more
than 3,000 locations and a continued
emphasis on optimizing our fleet of
stores.

We're committed to deli\f/ering a more profitable existing store

base, resulting in gross rhargin growth and improved returns on

store capital. ;

In fiscal 2003 Gap operafed stores in every state in the United
States, as well as the United Kingdom, Canada, France, Japan
and Germany. Cld Navy and Banana Republic have stores in the
United States and Canadja.

Looking to 2004, net square footage is expected to remain flat
with about 125 new store openings and 135 store closures.
New store locations will be weighted toward Old Navy, while
domestic Gap stores will}account for the majority of locations
closed. Since 2002, we have closed more than 220
underperforming stores. In January 2004, we announced that
we will exit the German jmarket in August 2004, closing 10 Gap
store locations, and focus resources on stronger international

growth opportunities. O '

10
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Store Locations Store Locations - Planned (a)
Beginning Opened Closed Total at End Ending Period Openings Closings
Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2003 Square Footage Fiscal 2004 Fiscal 2004
Gap U.S. 15 85
Gap Brand 1,327 3 81 1,249 11,319,333
Gap Qutlet 133 7 — 140 1,375,521
Gap International 10 25
United Kingdom 142 2 (11 133 1,252,905
United Kingdom Outlet 7 — — 7 59,115
Canada 106 — (4) 102 976,274
Canada Qutlet 2 — — 2 24,806
France 36 1 (2) 35 288,668
Uapan 69 3 (b} 67 750,985
Uapan Outlet 2 — — 2 34,160
Germany 10 — —_ 10 125,690
Banana Republic 30 5
Banana Republic U.S. 382 6 (12) 376 3,188,122
Banana Republic Canada 16 — — 16 119,943
Banana Republic Outlet 43 — — 43 352,450
Old Navy 70 20
Old Navy U.S. 774 6 (15) 765 15,386,260
Old Navy Canada 28 5 — 33 654,430
Old Navy Outlet 40 2 — 42 599,542
Total 3,117 35 (130} 3,022 36,518,204 125 135
iThe information made available in the table above and elsewhere in this Annual Report contains certain forward-looking statements that reflect our current view with respect to future events and
financial performance. Wherever used, the words “estimate,” “expect,” “plan,” “anticipate,” "believe,” “may” and similar expressions identify forward-looking statements. Any such forward-
looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties, and our future results of operations could differ materially from historical results or current expectations. For more detail on these risks,
please refer to our Annual Report on Form 10-K and/or other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. We assume no obligation to publicly update or revise our forward-looking
statements, even if experience or future changes make it clear that any projected results expressed or implied therein will not be realized.
(a) Planned store openings and closings are approximate numbers, as they are expected to vary based upon timing of deal negatiations.




GAP IS ALL ABOUT INDIVIDUAL STYLE—
finding it, enjoying it, living it.

In fiscal 2003, Gap made steady progress in its turnaround
efforts, restored comparable store sales growth and stabilized
the business through a greater focus on targeted customer
segments.

Through consumer insights and brand positioning work, Gap
developed a deeper understanding of existing core customer
segments that embody a style and fashion sensibility most
relevant to Gap. We have identified two primary customer
segments for men and women—"style conscious” and
"updated classics.” These segments represent our greatest
opportunity, and we're honing our strategies in all areas of our

business to deepen our relationship with these customers.

Throughout the year, Gap customers saw product improvements
as our designers and merchants applied clearly defined product
filters against customer research results. Of course, we never
lost sight of the great design elements that define Gap product;
current styling in the right colors and fabrics, great quality and a
perfect fit. For women, femininity, fashion and color were key
drivers for the business—as was evident last spring with Gap's
“must-have” pink Macintosh coat. For men, we offered upgraded
quality and construction detail, and regained credibility as a

! destination for casual clothes fitting a broader range of occasions.

12 GAP BANANA REPUBLIC OLD NAVY




Madonna and Missy Elliott kicked off our 2003 back-to-school
season and helped further establish Gap as a fresh, culturally
relevant brand. Separately, we launched product-focused
marketing campaigns targeted to men and women based on
our segmentation efforts. Strong sales of the women's stretch
bottoms and men's relaxed boot fit jeans featured in the spots
signaled that we're connecting with customers. We will
continue to evolve our marketing efforts to drive traffic and

communicate with our customers.

Gap also improved store associate training, which helped
drive conversion and deliver a better shopping experience to

customers.

As we sharpen our customer focus, improving operations is
also a priority. We have made progress in streamlining the
product development cycle to more quickly meet customer
needs, and we're also improving store productivity through
real estate optimization.

Behind it all is an extremely talented team. We made key
organizational changes at Gap this year, underscoring our focus
on talent development and putting the right team in place to
move our business forward.

GAP INC, 2003 ANNUAL REPORT

Gap will continue building customer relationships while focusing

on our traditional strengths—iconic products, compelling
marketing and convenient service. Today, we feel better
positioned to consistently meet and exceed the needs of our
well-defined target segments—and these efforts are preparing
Gap for growth. 3
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BANANA REPUBLIC CUSTOMERS
look to our brand for designer
sensibility and everyday luxury
at approachable prices.

|

BANANA REPUBLIC

In fiscal 2003, we continued differentiating ourselves as an
optimistic, unigue and emotionally engaging lifestyle brand
through enhanced product and service, and by creating a

stronger emotional connection with customers.

With a better understanding of what our most valued customers
desire from our brand, we are focusing our strategies on
primary customer segments for both men and women. To build
vitality in the men’s business we're concentrating on where we
see the most opportunity—with our "brand conscious” and
“style sophisticate” male customers. For women, we're
focused on the “fashion sophisticate” and “fashion follower.”

'Both our men and women customers are clearly responding
‘to Banana Republic's emphasis on design, more tightly edited
merchandise assortments and our focus on dressing for
different occasions—work, casual weekend and going out.
To complement our apparel collections, we're offering more
accessories—such as jewerly—to put the finishing touches on

outfits for any occassion.

Last year, Banana Republic took advantage of opportunities to

serve our customer segments through an expansion of fits.

14 GAP BANANA REPUBLIC OLD NAVY




After initial online success, Banana Republic petites rolled out to
four stores in 2003, and more stores will receive petite sizes
this year. Based on customer feedback, we introduced a new,
more relaxed women'’s pant fit called the Camden—and are
pleased with customer response. We also launched B.
Republic—a new line of active sport-inspired weekend wear for
men and women.

Critical to enhancing our relationship with customers is our
brand communication and marketing. In 2003, our marketing
helped speak to Banana Republic’'s renewed identity as a unique
lifestyle brand. Advertising, targeted separately toward men and
women, reflects the lifestyle positioning of the brand while
featuring the rich detail and design aesthetic for which the
brand is known. In addition, we are strengthening our
relationship with our Luxe customers by offering premium
services and perks. These cardholders spend more than double
that of our average cardholder.

Communication to the customer continues in our stores as well.
In 2003, Banana Republic focused on everything from props to
staff 10 ensure that our stores looked and felt brand appropriate.
For example, wall accent colors now match the palette of key

GAP INC. 2003 ANNUAL REPORT

merchandise, helping tell the fashion story of the season. And
we've doubled the amount of time we devote to staff training

to support our enhanced service culture.

In 2004, we will continue to focus on what differentiates
Banana Republic as a brand: elevated style and innovative
product, an enhanced, personalized store experience and

targeted communication to our core customer segments. 0




OLD NAVY MAKES IT FUN
for customers to shop for great
products at a gﬁeat price.

Everything we did in fiscal 2003 supported our positioning as a
value retailer with a specialty flair—and is helping strengthen
our customers’ experience with the Old Navy brand.

Through customer research, we continued to examine Old

Navy's brand positioning in the marketplace, and better

understand the needs of moms, families and teens—our key
customer segments. This knowledge has reinforced our product,
merchandising and marketing strategies to be even more
customer focused. It is also helping us redefine how we look

at—and run—our business.

in merchandising, we're using promotions on fresh, new
iproduct and highlighting “wear now” merchandise to keep the
‘product much more compelling for our customer. We also are
using our merchandising focus to “fill a need” for key product
categories. For example, we expanded our offering of socks and
underwear with more competitive everyday pricing and used
‘our first-ever Early Fall Stock-Up Sale to communicate

exceptional value to our customers.

‘Old Navy customers also saw new and expanded categories
lenter the store in 2003. After incredible response 1o maternity
clothing at oldnavy.com and a successful pilot in a few dozen
stores, Old Navy rolled out maternity styles into 160 store
Hocations. We plan to expand maternity intc even more stores
}in 2004. Just in time for the back-to-school season, we made
improvements to our uniform products and increased our

investment in the uniform business.

16 GAP BANANA REPUBLIC OLD NAVY




In 2004, we're focused on new product extensions and existing
categories—such as extended sizes—to drive growth. Based on
market data research, we also believe there is opportunity for

further Old Navy expansion into select markets in North America.

Our marketing is tailored to each customer segment to build
brand awareness, drive traffic and promote product. For the first
time, Old Navy simultaneously ran two different fall TV
campaigns, reaching family and teen customers with targeted
messages and products that appeal to each segment, And, we
marketed directly to Hispanic customers last holiday with our
first Spanish language TV campaign. The Old Navy circular
helped us target customers in select geographic regions by
highlighting product appropriate for various climates. We are
increasing the reach of the circular in 2004,

As Old Navy celebrates its 10th anniversary in 2004, we will
continue to better understand and meet the needs of moms,
families and teens who count on Old Navy to deliver the right
fashion at a great price. O

GAP INC. 2003 ANNUAL REPORT
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MISTY AND HER TWO CHILDREN,
Caleb, 5, and C?telyn, 3, were
living in a mobile home that wasn’t
connected to a septic tank.

|
!

soclial responsivility

“GAP INC.

The lot their trailer sat onj was surrounded by construction
debris and rats seemed 10 be everywhere.

Today, thanks to a dedica:ted group of Gap Inc. employees,
working through the Gapl Foundation and Habitat for Humanity,
Caleb and Catelyn not only have their own rooms, but a

beautiful yard in which tc play.
|
|

Misty’s house was built By Community Corps—just one of many
Gap Inc. programs designed 1o help our company and Gap,
Banana Republic and Oldj Navy employees make a difference in
the communities where \fNe live and work,

i
Gap Foundation—Gap Inc.'s charitable arm since 1977—
manages our community| involvement efforts, both through
grants for national and lojcal organizations as well as through

programs and events that encourage employee volunteerism.

Our national partnership ‘;Jvith Boys & Girls Clubs of America is
helping teens explore career opportunities and prepare for the
workforce through a fumijed program impacting more than 2,600
Boys & Girls Clubs nationwide. At the local level, for example,

Gap Inc.’s sponsorship of the Summerbridge program in Hong

Kong as well as the Marwen organization in Chicago, ll., is

helping underserved youth join after-school enrichment

programs and gain valuable career development skills.

We believe giving time is equally as important as giving money.
Company-supported employee volunteer programs range from
sponsored events to the opportunity for full-time employees to
take five hours paid time off per month to volunteer. And, our
gift match program matches employees’ individual charitable

donations dollar for dollar.

With more than 150,000 employees, Gap Inc. has a strong and
powerful volunteer base that is helping create positive change
around the world. We will continue to encourage our people to
become actively involved in their communities through Gap

Foundation programs.

We feel strongly that commerce and social responsibility don't
have to be at odds, and we continue to work to find ways to put

them into balance.

18 GAP BANANA REPUBLIC OLD NAVY




Ensuring that our clothing is made in an ethical manner is
important to us, and we're committed to being a leader in creating

fair and safe conditions for workers in the garment industry.

Gap Inc. has developed one of the most comprehensive factory-
monitoring programs in the business. We have more than 90
employees around the world whose sole job is to improve
conditions in the garment factories that make our clothes. When
they find a problem, we take action. In most cases we'll work
with factories to improve their practices and conditions.
Howaever, we will stop doing business with vendors that do not
meet our expectations. In 2003, we revoked approvals for 136
factories because of compliance issues.

Gap Inc.'s commitment to balancing commerce and social
responsibility extends to our environmental practices. To help
protect and preserve the environment, we've developed
programs focused on energy management, cleaner air, waste
reduction and constructing sustainable buildings. Throughout our
business, we continue to find ways to promote environmental
stewardship—from setting expectations with external vendors,
to daily business decisions affecting purchasing, merchandising,

marketing, store construction and facility management.

GAP INC. 2003 ANNUAL REPORT

All of these efforts are more than just sound business

practices—they're an essential element in attracting and retaining
a talented workforce. Today, our employees have a better
understanding of our core principles, including Gap Inc.’s purpose
and values. This is empowering our people to make better
decisions. We believe that our commitment to our employees—
demonstrated by competitive benefits, an inclusive work
environment and programs that support personal development—
makes Gap Inc. a company people are proud to work for.

This year, Gap Inc. is publishing its first social responsibility
report to help our employees, customers, shareholders and
others better understand our commitment to maintaining the
highest standards of social responsibility and business ethics.
More information is available on gapinc.com.

We're proud of the differences we're making, but our efforts
are a work in progress. Every day we learn something new.
We remain committed to exploring and finding ways to
positively impact the communities where we do business. [
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key financial statistics

GAP INC. FISCAL 2003
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FIVE-YEAR Sj‘ELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Compound Annual Growth Rate

Fiscal Year (in weeks)

3-year 5-year 2003 (52) 2002 (52) 2001 (52) 2000 {53) 1999 (52)
Operating Results ($ in ;nillions)
Net sales T 5% 12% 15,854 14,455 3 13,848 13,673 11,635
Cost of goods sold and ogcupancy expenses _ — 9,886 9,642 9,705 8,699 8,776
Percentage of net sales — — 62.4% 66.0% 70.1% 62.9% 58.2%
Operating expenses | _ _ 4,089 3901 § 3,806 3,629 3,043
Net interest expense | — — 196 212 96 63 32
Earnings before income téxes 7 5 1,683 800 241 1,382 1,785
Percentage of net sales | —_ — 10.6% 5.5% 1.7% 10.1% 15.3%
Income taxes ‘ — — 653 323 $ 249 504 658
Net earnings {loss) ‘ 8 5 1,030 477 (8 878 1,127
Percentage of net sales \ — — 6.5% 3.3% 0.1%) 6.4% 9.7%
Cash dividends paid — — 79 78 $ 76 75 76
Purchase of property and|equipment — — 272 303 957 1,882 1,239
Depreciation and amaortization — — 664 693 732 536 402
Per Share Data :
Net eamings (loss)—basi¢ 4% 4% 116 054 % (0.01) 1.03 1.32
Net earnings (loss)—diluted 3 4 1.09 0.54 0.01) 1.00 1.26
Cash dividends paid (a} ‘ —-— — 0.08 0.09 0.09 0.09 0.08
Shareholders' equity (boo:k value) — — 5.37 4.18 3.48 3.43 2.63
Financial Position ($ in r;nillions)
Property and equipment, :net (6%) 13% 3,368 3,777 $ 4,161 4,008 2,715
Merchandise inventory ‘ (4) 10 1,704 2,048 1,769 1,904 1,462
Total assets : 14 21 10,343 3,802 7,683 7,013 5,189
Inventory per square foot — — 45 53 47 59 59
Inventory per square footj (decrease) increase — — (15.5%) 13.5% 20.3%) 0.1% 14.7%
Working capital ‘ — — 4,197 3014 § 1,023 {151) 445
Current ratio ‘ — — 2.68:1 211 1.48:1 0.95:1 1.251
Total long-term debt and 'jsenior convertible notes,
less current maturities — — 2,487 2,896 $ 1,961 780 785
Ratio of long-term debt ahd senior convertible notes
to shareholders' equity (b) — — 0.52:1 0.79:1 0.65:1 0.35:1 0.35:1
Shareholders' equity ‘ — — 4,783 3,658 3 3,010 2,928 2,233
Return on average assets — — 10.2% 5.4% 0.1%) 14.4% 24.6%
Return on average share!]o!ders' equity — — 24.4% 14.3% (0.3%) 34.0% 59.2%
Statistics
Number of store \ocation‘:s opened — — 35 15 324 434 315
Number of store 1ocation$ closed — — 130 95 75 60 17
Number of store locations open at year-end (6%) 4% 3,022 3,117 3,097 2,848 2,474
Net (decrease) increase m number of store locations — — (3%) 1% 3% 15% 14%
Comparable store sales increase {decrease)
percentage (52-week basjs) — — 7% (3%) (13%) (5%) 7%
Net sales per average sqpare foot {52-week basis) (¢} — — 415 378 $ 394 482 548
Square footage of store space at year-end (d) 5 14 36,518 37,252 36,333 31,373 23,978
Percentage (decrease) inCrease in square feet — — (2%) 3% 16% 31% 28%
Number of employees at‘year«end 1 9 153,000 169,000 165,000 166,000 140,000
Weighted-average number of shares—basic (d) — — 892,555 875,546 860,255 849,811 853,805
Weighted-average numbér of shares—diluted (d) — — 988,178 881,478 860,255 879,137 895,029
Number of shares outstabding at year-end,
net of treasury stock (d) | — — 897,202 887,328 865,727 853,997 850,499

|
{a) Excludes a dividend of $.0222 per share declared in January 2004 {fiscal 2003) but paid in the first quarter of fiscal 2004.

(b} Long-term debt includes current maturities.
(c) Based on monthly averagé store square footage.

{d} In thousands.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The information made available below and elsewhere in this Annual Report contains certain forward-looking statements that reflect the

current view of Gap Inc. (the “company,” "we,” “our”) with respect to future events and financial performance. Wherever used, the
words “estimate,” "expect,” “plan,” “anticipate, may"” and similar expressions identify forward-looking statements.

oo "o v

believe,

Any such forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties, and our future results of operations could differ materially
from historical results or current expectations. Some of these risks include, without limitation, ongoing competitive pressures in the
apparel industry, risks associated with challenging domestic and international retail environments, changes in the level of consumer
spending or preferences in apparel, trade restrictions and political or financial instability in countries where our goods are manufactured,
impact of legal proceedings, and/or other factors that may be described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K and/or other filings with the
Securities and Exchange Commission. Future economic and industry trends that could potentially impact revenues and profitability are
difficult to predict.

We assume no cbligation to publicly update or revise our forward-looking statements, even if experience or future changes make it clear
that any projected results expressed or implied therein will not be realized.

Overview

Overall for fiscal 2003, we executed well against our strategic priorities of driving quality earnings by improving margins, improving our
inventory turns, flowing our earnings through to strong cash flow and increasing our returns on capital by optimizing the productivity of
our store fleet through selective closures and repositioning. We're pleased that total sales and comparable stores sales were up in each
divisicn and we had positive comparable store sales each month of fiscal 2003. We better satisfied our customers, and we delivered
more value to our shareholders.

Key to these gains was more disciplined inventory management and better product assortments. During fiscal 2003, we began
implementing initiatives to better manage inventory and improve inventory turns. These initiatives include optimizing receipt timing,
re-evaluating optimal in-store and distribution center inventory levels and re-evaluating replenishment frequency. Better product
assortments were driven by our consumer insight initiatives. Consumer insights are now embedded in our product development process
through ongoing consumer and competitor research, customer fit camps and focus groups, and feedback from our stere associates. This
work helps ensure that assortments are well balanced and that each brand is appropriately interpreting fashion and style trends to satisfy
customers' needs. At lower inventory levels and better product assortments than prior year, we supported positive comparable store
sales growth while meeting customer expectations and minimizing fashion and markdown risk.

We ended fiscal 2003 with $4.7 billion in cash and short-term investments, representing an increase in cash and short-term investments
compared with fiscal 2002 of $1.3 billion. A portion of our total cash is restricted; the majority of which serves as collateral to our letter
of credit agreements. Driving our significant year-over-year cash flow performance were improved earnings, lower working capital uses
related to inventory purchases and reduced capital spending. While we added $1.3 billion in cash and short-term investments to our
Consolidated Balance Sheets, we reduced our debt balances by $626 million. In the first quarter of fiscal 2003, we repaid a maturing $500
million twe-year bond, and during the second half of fiscal 2003, we executed open market debt repurchases of Euro and domestic
bonds, using cash flows from operating activities. In addition, in June 2003 we executed a new credit facility with improved terms and
covenants and increased flexibility based on creditors’ acknowledgment of our improved financial position.

As we continue to improve our product assortments, marketing and customer service, we will continue to focus on improving margins,
increasing the efficiency of our capital resources and reducing our debt.
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Results of Operafions

Net Sales i 52 Weeks Ended 52 Weeks Ended 52 Weeks Ended
i Jan. 31, 2004 Feb. 1, 2003 Feb. 2, 2002

Net sales {in millions) ‘ 3 16,854 3 14,458 $ 13,848
Total net sales growth percentage 10% 4% 1%
Comparable store sales increase (decrease) percentage 7% (3%) (13%)
Net sales per average squjare foot $ 415 3 378 3 394
Square footage of store sﬁ)ace at year-end (in thousands) 36,518 ' 37,252 36,333
Number of new store \ocajtions 35 115 324
95 75

Number of closed store Iolcations 130

|
A store is included in icomparable store sales (“Comp”) when it has been open at least one year and it has not been expanded or
remodeled by more than 15 percent or permanently relocated within that year. Therefore, a store is included in Comp on the first day it
has comparable prior yiear'sales. Stores in which square footage has been expanded or remodeled by 15 percent or more are excluded
from Comp until the firist day they have comparable prior year sales at the expanded or remodeled location.

i !
A store is considered non-comparable (“Non-comp”) when, in general, the store had no comparable prior year sales. For example, a new
store or a store that has been expanded by more than 15 percent or permanently relocated within the last year is considered Non-comp.
Non-store sales such Ss online operations are also considered Non-comp.
Net sales increased $1f.4 billion in fiscal 2003 compared with fiscal 2002. This increase is due to an increase in cur comparable store sales
of $993 million and an increase in our non-comparable store sales of $406 million. The increase in our comparable store sales was driven
by better product assortments, which drove an increase in the number of customers making a purchase, primarily at Gap U.S., Old Navy
and Gap International. }Better product assortments and improved inventory management drove higher average unit retail sales, primarily
at Banana Republic, Gép U.S. and Gap International, and increased units per transaction, primarily at Old Navy and Gap U.S.

Because we transiate foreign currencies into U.S. dollars for reparting purposes, currency fluctuations can have an impact on our results.
The impact of changes in foreign currency exchange rates during fiscal 2003 positively affected the translation of foreign currency sales
into U.S. dollars. For ﬁ‘scal 2003, currency fluctuations accounted for $224 million of the increase in net sales.

Comparable store salejs percentage by division for fiscal 2003 and 2002 were as follows:

* Gap U.S. reported pésitive 7 percent in 2003 versus negative 7 percent in 2002

* Gap International rep}orted positive 6 percent in 2003 versus negative 5 percent in 2002

e Banana Republic rep}orted positive 7 percent in 2003 versus negative 1 percent in 2002

e Old Navy reported pbsr’tive 8 percent in 2003 versus positive 1 percent in 2002

Total sales by division for fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001 were as follows:

* Gap U.S. reported $E;3‘3 bitlion in 2003 versus $5.1 hillion in 2002 and $5.2 billion in 2001

» Gap International reported $2.0 billion in 2003 versus $1.7 billion in 2002 and $1.6 billion in 2001
¢ Banana Republic rep“orted $2.1 billion in 2003 versus $1.9 billion in 2002 and $1.9 billion in 2001

* Old Navy reported $b.5 billion in 2003 versus $5.8 billion in 2002 and $5.1 billion in 2001

Sales productivity in fi?scal 2003 improved 19% to $415 per average square foot, compared with $378 per average square foot in fiscal
2002. The increase in net sales per average square foot for fiscal 2003 was primarily attributable to increases in comparable store sales.
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Store count and square footage activity were as follows:

Jan. 31, 2004 Feb. 1, 2003
Number of Sq. Ft. Number of Sq. Ft.
Store Locations {In Millions} Store Locations (In Millions)
Gap U.S. 1,248 11.3 1,327 1.9
Gap Outlet 140 1.4 133 13
Gap International

United Kingdom 133 1.3 142 1.3
United Kingdom Qutlet 7 0.1 7 0.1
Canada 102 1.0 106 1.0
Canada Outlet 2 — 2 —
France 36 0.3 36 03
Japan 67 0.8 69 0.8
Japan Outlet 2 — 2 —
Germany 10 0.1 10 0.1
Banana Republic U.S. 376 32 382 32
Banana Republic Canada 16 0.1 16 0.1
Banana Republic Outlet 43 04 43 03
Old Navy U.S. 765 15.4 774 15.7
Old Navy Canada 33 0.7 28 0.6
Old Navy Outlet 42 0.6 40 0.6
Total 3,022 36.5 3117 37.3
(Decrease) Increase (3%) 2%) 1% 3%

Cost of Goods Sold and Occupancy Expenses
Cost of goods sold and occupancy expenses include the cost of merchandise, rent, occupancy and depreciation for our stores and
distribution centers.

Cost of goods sold and occupancy expenses as a percentage of net sales decreased 3.6 percentage points to 62.4 percent in fiscal 2003
compared with 66.0 percent in fiscal 2002.

The decrease in fiscal 2003 compared with fiscal 2002 was driven by an increase in merchandise margins and decreased occupancy
expenses of 2.4 percentage points and 1.3 percentage points, respectively. The increase in merchandise margins as a percentage of net
sales of 2.4 percentage points in fiscal 2003 was primarily driven by strong product asscrtments, which drove our improved markdown
margins, and an increase in the percentage of goods sold at regular price across all divisions compared with fiscal 2002. In addition,
favorable shortage results from annual inventory counts completed during fiscal 2003 contributed to our merchandise margin
improvement as a percentage of net sales. The 1.3 percentage point improvement in our occcupancy expenses was primarily driven by a
0.9 percentage point improvement from leveraging our rent, occupancy and depreciation expenses combined with the decrease in square
footage on improved sales.

Cost of goods sold and occupancy expenses as a percentage of net sales decreased 4.1 percentage points to 66.0 percent in fiscal 2002
compared with 70.1 percent in fiscal 2001. The decrease in fiscal 2002 compared with fiscal 2001 was driven by an increase in
merchandise margins and decreased occupancy expenses of 3.9 percentage points and 0.2 percentage peints, respectively. The increase
in merchandise margins as a percentage of net sales of 3.9 percentage points in fiscal 2002 was primarily driven by a decrease in
markdown selling and higher markdown margins compared with fiscal 2001.
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As a general business practice, we review our inventory levels in order to identify slow-moving merchandise and broken assortments
(items no longer in stéck in a sufficient range of sizes) and use markdowns to clear the majority of this merchandise.

Operating Expense#

Operating expenses irhcreased $188 million in fiscal 2003, but decreased 1.2 percentage points as a percentage of net sales from 27.0
percent to 25.8 percerﬁt compared with fiscal 2002. This decrease was due primarily to higher leverage on store payroll, benefit costs and
operating expenses. The increase in total operating expense dollars compared with fiscal 2002 was primarily due to higher repair and
maintenance expensejs to support our aging store fleet, higher store payroll to support increased sales and market price premiums paid
for our open market bpnd repurchases made during fiscal 2003. These increases were partially offset by insurance recovery proceeds of
about $20 million recéived in the second guarter of fiscal 2003, that were primarily related to the World Trade Center stores.

In support of our ongoing goal to return to an investment grade credit rating, we reduced our outstanding debt by $626 million by repaying
$500 million of maturing debt and repurchasing $168 million of Euro and domestic bonds. The debt reduction was partially offset by a $42
million increase in the|carrying value of our Euro bond as a result of foreign currency transiation. Although the bond repurchases are net
present value positive,|we incurred $21 million in operating expenses related to the market price premiums that we paid to retire our bonds.

Operating expenses increased $35 million in fiscal 2002, but decreased 0.5 percentage points as a percentage of net sales from 27.5
percent to 27.0 percent compared with fiscal 2001. This decrease was driven by cost reductions and expense savings, which accounted
for a 1.6 percentage point decrease, partially offset by a loss of sales leverage, which accounted for a 0.7 percentage point increase in
operating expenses a$ a percentage of net sales. Incremental advertising, which included TV campaigns and circulars, and additional
excess corporate facilities charges drove an additional 0.4 percentage point increase in operating expenses as a percentage of net sales.

Other operating charges
The following discussi:on should be read in conjunction with Note E to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

In January 2004, we sjigned an agreement to sell our Gap brand operations in Germany, effective August 1, 2004. Gap brand operations
in Germany represent ‘our smallest international retail business, and with only 10 store locations, account for well under 1 percent of total
company sales. As a \result of our decision, we recognized an operating expense charge of $14 million for asset write-downs. This
decision represents a|strategic move toward re-allocating our international resources to optimize growth in our other existing markets
and focusing our atterition on more attractive, longer-term growth opportunities in new markets.

|

During fiscal 2003 ané fiscal 2002, due to the continued deterioration of the commercial real estate market, we revised our sublease
income and sublease jcommencement projections and assumptions related to corporate facilities in our San Francisco and San Bruno
campuses. Additionally, in fiscal 2002, we considered our corporate facilities space needs and identified and abandoned additional
excess facility space. iAs a result of these actions, we recorded additional sublease loss charges of $8.6 million and $77.4 million in
fiscal 2003 and ﬂsca} 2002, respectively. The sublease loss charges were recorded in operating expenses in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

Remaining cash expenditures associated with the sublease loss reserve are expected to be paid over the remaining various lease terms
through 2017. Based en our current assumptions as of January 31, 2004, we expect the sublease of our excess facilities to result in a
total reduction of appr;oximate\y $247 million in future rent expense. Our accrued liability related to the sublease loss charges of about
$102 million at January 31, 2004, was net of approximately $111 million of estimated sublease income to be generated from sublease
contracts, which have not yet been identified. Our ability to generate this amount of sublease income is highly dependent upon economic
conditions and comm(—%rcial real estate market conditions at the time we negotiate sublease arrangements with third parties. While the
amount we have accrued represents our best estimate of the remaining obligations we expect to incur in connection with these facilities,
estimates are subjectito change and may require additional adjustments as conditions and facts change. If adverse macroeconomic
conditions continue, pérticularly as they pertain to the commercial real estate market, we may be required to further reduce our estimated
future sublease 'mcomje and, accordingly, incur a charge to increase our estimated accrued liability.

26 MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS



As a result of improved business performance, new business initiatives and opportunities for future growth, and continued high levels of
office vacancy in the San Francisco Bay Area market, management is commencing a thorough assessment of our available space and
future needs. The results of this analysis could positively or negatively impact the level of our sublease reserves.

Interest Expense

The decrease of $15 million in interest expense for fiscal 2003, compared with fiscal 2002, was primarily due to lower fees related to our
new three-year secured $750 million revolving credit facility and $1.2 billion letter of credit agreements, and to the maturity of our $500
million two-year bond in May 2003. This decrease was partially offset by a full year of interest expense in fiscal 2003 on our senior
convertible notes issued in March 2002, plus a full year of higher coupon interest rates on our outstanding notes maturing in fiscal 2005
and fiscal 2008. The higher coupon interest rates on these notes, which took effect on June 15, 2002, is a result of downgrades in our
long-term senior unsecured credit ratings in the first quarter of fiscal 2002.

The increase of $139 million in interest expense for fiscal 2002 compared with fiscal 2001 was primarily due to an increase in long-term
borrowings in fiscal 2002 and late fiscal 2001 and higher fees on the $1.4 billion secured two-year credit facility entered into in March 2002.
For fiscal 2004, we expect our gross interest expense, excluding interest income on cash investments, to be $210 million to $220 million
for the full year.

Interest Income
The increase of $1.2 million in interest income in fiscal 2003 compared with fiscal 2002 was primarily due to increases in average cash
available for investment as a result of improved cash flows from operations.

The increase of $24 million in interest income in fiscal 2002 compared with fiscal 2001 was due to increases in average cash available
for investment, primarily due to the issuance of senior convertible notes in March 2002, partially offset by a decrease in interest rates.

Income Taxes
The effective tax rate was 38.8 percent, 40.4 percent and 49 percent (excluding the $131 million tax charge recorded during fiscal 2001)
in fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The decrease in the effective tax rate in fiscal 2003 from fiscal 2002 was primarily driven by an improvement in the mix of earnings from
domestic and international operations, improved earnings performance and the determination that it is more likely than not that certain
accumulated state net operating losses will be available to offset future income.

The decrease in the effective tax rate in fiscal 2002 from fiscal 2001 (excluding the $131 million tax charge recorded during fiscal 2001)
was primarily driven by an improvement in the mix of earnings in domestic and international operations and improved earnings
performance.

The increase in the effective tax rate in fiscal 2001 resulted from a $131 million tax charge recorded during fiscal 2001 and an earnings
performance that was below expectations. The tax charge of $131 million primarily reflected changes in the estimates of probable
settlements of foreign and domestic tax audits. In addition, the level and mix of earnings caused our tax rate to increase well above earlier
expectations. As a result, the effective tax rate for fiscal 2001 (exclusive of the $137 million tax charge) was 49 percent.

We currently expect the fiscal 2004 effective tax rate to be within a range of 38.5 percent to 39.5 percent. The actual rate will ultimately
depend on several variables, including the mix of earnings between domestic and international operations and the overall level of earnings
and could also be affected by the resolution of tax contingencies for amounts different from our current estimates.
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J
Financial Condltlb

Liquidity :
The following sets fortr‘h certain measures of our liquidity:

Fiscal Year 2003 2002 2001
Working capital (in millions} $ 4,197 $ 3,014 $ 1,023
Current ratio ! 2.68:1 2111 1.48:1

"
]
|
i
i
i

We ended fiscal 2003Iwith $4.7 billion in cash, of which $1.4 billion was restricted and $1.7 billion was held in short-term investments.
Our restricted cash primarily serves as collateral to our letter of credit agreements, which are used to pay vendors for inventory. These
agreements enabled us to lower interest expense in fiscal 2003. Our total outstanding debt was $2.8 billion. We believe the combination
of cash on hand and éash from operations will provide adequate liquidity for business operations, capital expenditures, debt reduction,
dividend payments and growth opportunities. At January 31, 2004, our working capital and current ratio calculation included the $1.4
billion of restricted cas‘h.

Cash flows from opjerating activities

For fiscal 2003, the $933 million increase in net cash provided by operating activities compared with fiscal 2002 was primarily attributable
to improvement in oujr net earnings {exclusive of depreciation and amortization) and a decrease in the relative growth of merchandise
inventory. This was of:fset by changes in other operating assets and liabilities, which were primarily driven by timing of certain payments.

|

Our inventory balance' at January 31, 2004, was $71.7 billion, a decrease from February 1, 2003, of $344 million. Inventory per square foot
was $45, or $8 per sduare foot lower than in fiscal 2002. Inventory management remains an area of focus as we continue to execute
against our strategie:s to optimize inventory productivity and more effectively manage slower turning inventory while maintaining
appropriate in-store merchandise levels to support sales growth.

For fiscal 2002, the $97 million decrease in net cash provided by operating activities compared with fiscal 2001 was primarily due to an
increase in merchandzse inventory and a decrease in the relative growth in accounts payable and long-term liabilities, pamaHy offset by
an increase in net earmngs (exclusive of depreciation and amortization).

Our inventory balancé at February 1, 2003, was $2.0 billion, an increase from February 2, 2002, of $279 million. Inventory per square foot
was $53, or $6 per square foot higher than in fiscal 2001. The increase in our inventory at February 1, 2003, was primarily a result of
unusually low inventary levels at February 2, 2002, as we had aggressively liquidated slow moving merchandise and restrained inventory
investments until theﬁsecond half of fiscal 2002, when we were more confident in our product.

We fund inventory e%penditures during normal and peak periods through cash flow from operations. Our business follows a seasonal
pattern, peaking overja total of about 13 weeks during the back-to-school and holiday periods. During fiscal 2003 and fiscal 2002, these
periods accounted far 33 percent and 34 percent, respectively, of our annual net sales. The seasonality of our operations may lead to
significant ﬂuctuationjs in certain asset and liability accounts between fiscal year-end and subseguent interim periods.
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Cash flows from investing activities

For fiscal 2003, net cash used for investing activities increased $422 million compared with fiscal 2002. For fiscal 2002, net cash used
for investing activities decreased $364 million compared with fiscal 2001. The increase in fiscal 2003 was driven by increased purchases
of short-term investments due to our improved cash position. The decrease in fiscal 2002 were driven by reduced capital expenditures
for our new stores as a result of our decision to reduce our square footage growth rate offset by our short-term investing activity. For
fiscal 2003 our net square footage decreased 2 percent.

In fiscal 2003, capital expenditures totaled approximately $272 million. The maijority of these expenditures were used for 35 new store
locations, store remodels and information technology. Capital expenditures for fiscal 2002 and fiscal 2001 were $303 million and $357
million, respectively, resulting in a net increase in store space of 0.9 million square feet in fiscal 2002 and 5.0 million in fiscal 2001.

For fiscal 2004, we expect capital expenditures to be about $500 million. Approximately $155 million of the capital spending is for
information technology. Store capital is estimated to be about $320 million, with about $120 million for new stores and about $200 million
for existing stores. Capital spending for headquarters and distribution centers is estimated to be about $25 million. We expect to open
about 125 new store locations and to close about 135 store locations. New store locations will be weighted toward Old Navy, while Gap
U.S. stores will account for the majority of locations closed. As a result, we expect net square footage to remain flat for the full year fiscal
2004. We expect to fund those capital expenditures with cash flows from operations.

Cash flows from financing activities

For fiscal 2003, the $3.3 billion decrease in net cash provided by financing activities compared with fiscal 2002 was primarily due to the
restriction of cash that serves as collateral to our letter of credit agreements. In the first quarter of fiscal 2003, we repaid a maturing $500
million two-year bond. Additionally, in the third quarter of fiscal 2003 we repurchased the equivalent of $27 million of Eurobonds in the
open market, and in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003 we repurchased about $141 million of domestic bonds in the open market.

For fiscal 2002, the $1.1 billion increase in net cash provided by financing activities compared with fiscal 2001 was a result of the issuance
of $1.38 billion senior convertible notes in March 2002.

Credit facility

In June 2003, we replaced our existing $1.4 billion secured two-year credit facility scheduled to expire in March 2004 with a new three-
year secured $750 million revolving credit facility {the “new Facility”). In addition, we executed agreements securing $1.2 billion in letter
of credit issuing capacity. The letter of credit agreements also have three-year terms and are secured by approximately $1.24 billion in
cash, which is included in restricted cash on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. The new Facility is available for general corporate
purposes. The fees related to the new Facility fluctuate based on our long-term senior unsecured credit ratings and our leverage ratio.

The new Facility contains financial and other covenants, including, but not limited to, limitations on capital expenditures, liens and cash
dividends and maintenance of certain financial ratios, including a fixed charge coverage ratio and a leverage ratio. The letter of credit
agreements contain a fixed charge coverage ratio that is more lenient than the ratio in the new Facility. Violation of these covenants could
result in a default under the new Facility and letter of credit agreements, which would permit the participating banks to restrict our ability to
further access the new Facility for letters of credit and advances, terminate our ability to request letters of credit pursuant to the letter of
credit agreements and require the immediate repayment of any outstanding advances under the new Facility. In addition, such a default
could, under certain circumstances, permit the holders of our outstanding unsecured debt to accelerate payment of such obligations.

Letters of credit represent a payment undertaking guaranteed by a bank on our behalf to pay the vendor a given amount of money upon
presentation of specific documents demonstrating that merchandise has shipped. Vendor payables are recorded in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets at the time of merchandise title transfer, although the letters of credit are generally issued prior to this.

As of January 31, 2004, we had $732 million in trade letters of credit issued under our letter of credit agreements. There were no
drawings under the new Facility.
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Other debt information

On February 27, 2004!, Standard & Poor’s Rating Services (“Standard & Poor’s”) changed our long-term senior unsecured credit ratings

outlook from negative:to stable. On February 9, 2004, Moody's Investors Service (“Moody’s”) placed our credit on review for possible
upgrade. On December 22, 2003, Moody's changed our long-term ratings outlock from stable to positive. On August 12, 2003, Moody's
changed our long-term senior unsecured credit ratings outlook from negative to stable and raised our speculative grade liquidity (SGL)
rating from SGL-2 to SGL-T. The SGL rating is intended to give bondholders a short-term (12-18 month) view of a company's ability to

meet operating and ﬂrﬁancmg obligations. The rating is based on a scale of 1 to 4, with 1 being the highest.

In November 2001, we issued $200 million aggregate principal amount of debt securities at an original annual interest rate of 8.15 percent,
due December 15, 20b5 {the “2005 notes”), and $500 million aggregate principal amount of debt securities at an original annual interest
rate of 8.8 percent, due December 15, 2008 (the "2008 notes”). The interest rate payable on the notes of each series is subject to
adjustment from timeito time if either Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s reduces the rating ascribed to the notes below Baa2, in the case of
Moody's, or below BBE+, in the case of Standard & Poor’s. The interest rate on the notes will be increased by 0.25 percent for each rating
category downgrade b:y either rating agency. In addition, if Moody's or Standard & Poor’s subseguently increases the rating ascribed to
the notes, the ongoingj interest rate then payable on the notes will be decreased by 0.25 percent for each rating category upgrade by either
rating agency up to Baa2, in the case of Moody's, or BBB+, in the case of Standard & Poor’s. In no event will the interest rate be reduced
below the original inte;rest rate payable on the notes. Since we have experienced downgrades in our credit ratings since the notes were
issued, the interest rate payable by us on the 2005 notes has increased by 175 basis points to 9.90 percent per annum and the interest
rate payable by us on|the 2008 notes has increased by 175 basis points to 10.55 percent per annum. As a result of the downgrades in
our short-term credit rétings, we no longer have meaningful access to the commercial paper market; however, we replaced this borrowing
capacity with proceedjs from the issuance of senior convertible notes in March 2002. In addition, any future reduction in our long-term
senior unsecured creciit rating could result in reduced access to the capital markets and higher interest costs on future financings.

in March 2002, we islsued $1.38 billion aggregate principal amount of 5.75 percent senior convertible notes due March 15, 2009, and
received net proceeds of $1.35 billion in cash net of underwriting and other fees. Interest is payable semi-annually on March 15 and
September 15 of each year. These debt securities are recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at their issuance amounts net of
unamortized discount;rand redemptions. We have an option to call the notes on or after March 20, 2005. The notes are convertible, unless
previously redeemed ‘or repurchased, at the option of the holder at any time prior to maturity, into shares of our common stock at a
conversion price of $§16.12 per share, subject to adjustment in certain events, for a total of 85,607,630 shares. If converted, these
additianal shares would reduce our future basic earnings per share. Prior to conversion, the convertible notes are potentially dilutive to
our earnings per sharé at certain earnings levels. The effects of these dilutive securities on our earnings per share are computed using
the if-converted meth%od. The net proceeds are available for general corporate purposes.

]
Contractual cash opligations and commercial commitments
The following table slets forth a summary of our contractual cash obligations as of January 31, 2004. Certain of these contractual
obligations are reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, while others are disclosed as future obligations.

; More than

(In millions) ‘ Less than 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years Total
Amounts reflected in Cbnsolidated Balance Sheets:

Long-term debt (a) $ 283 $ 180 $ 877 3 50 $ 1,390
Senior convertible notesi — — — 1,380 1,380
Other cash obligations :not reflected in Consolidated Balance Sheets:

Operating leases l 924 1,528 1,048 1,928 5,429
Unconditional purchase ébligations (b) 3,077 €9 2 - 3,148
Total contractual cash ébligations $ 4,284 $ 1,777 $ 1,927 $ 3,359 $ 11,347

{a) Represents principal maturities, net of unamortized discount, excluding interest. See Note B to the accompanying consolidated financial statements,
(b} Represents legally-binding commitments to purchase inventary and other commitments made in the normal course of business to meet operational requirements.
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Amounts reflected in Consolidated Balance Sheets

We have other commercial commitments, not reflected in the table above, that were incurred in the normal course of business to support
our operations, including standby letters of credit, surety bonds and bank guarantees. Amounts outstanding at January 31, 2004, relating
to our standby letters of credit, surety bonds and bank guarantees were $65 million, $25 million and $6 million, respectively.

We have other long-term liabilities reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, including deferred income taxes and insurance accruals,
The payment obligations associated with these liabilities are not reflected in the table above due to the absence of scheduled maturities.
Therefore, the timing of these payments cannot be determined, except for amounts estimated to be payable in 2004 that are included
in current liabilities.

Other cash obligations not reflected in Consolidated Balance Sheets

The amounts that are reflected in the table on the left for operating leases represent future minimum lease payments under
noncancellable operating leases. In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, our operating leases
are not recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheets; however, the minimum lease payments related to these leases are disclosed in
Note D to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, as well as in the table on the left.

We have applied the measurement and disclosure provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 45 (“FIN 45"), “Guarantor's Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of the Indebtedness of Others,” to our agreements that contain
guarantee and certain indemnification clauses. FIN 45 requires that upon issuance of a guarantee, the guarantor must disclose and
recognize a liability for the fair value of the obligation it assumes under the guarantee. The initial recognition and measurement provisions
of FIN 45 are effective for guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. As of January 31, 2004, we did not have any material
guarantees that were issued or modified subsequent to December 31, 2002.

However, we are a party t0 a variety of contractual agreements under which we may be obligated to indemnify the other party for certain
matters. These contracts primarily relate to our commercial contracts, operating leases, trademarks, intellectual property, financial
agreements and various other agreements. Under these contracts we may provide certain routine indemnifications relating to
representations and warranties (e.g., ownership of assets, environmental or tax indemnifications) or personal injury matters. The terms
of these indemnifications range in duration and may not be explicitly defined.

Generally, the maximum obligation under such indemnifications is not explicitly stated and, as a result, the overall amount of these obligations
cannot be reasonably estimated. Historically, we have not made significant payments for these indemnifications. We believe that if we were
to incur & loss in any of these matters, the loss would not have a material effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

As party to a reinsurance pool for workers’ compensation, general liability and automobile liability, we have guarantees with a maximum
exposure of $92 million.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires
management to adopt accounting policies and make significant judgments and estimates to develop amounts reflected and disclosed in
the financial statements. In many cases, there are alternative policies or estimation technigues that could be used. We maintain a
thorough process to review the application of our accounting policies and to evaluate the appropriateness of the many estimates that are
required to prepare the financial statements of a large, global corporation. However, even under optimal circumstances, estimates
routinely reguire adjustment based on changing circumstances and the receipt of new or better information.

GAP INC. 2003 ANNUAL REPORT 31




The policies and estimates discussed below include the financial statement elements that are either the most judgmental or involve the
selection or applicatioi’\ of alternative accounting policies and are material to our financial statements. Management has discussed the
development and seléction of these critical accounting policies and estimates with the Audit and Finance Committee of our Board of
Directors and with our independent auditors.

Inventory Valuation} Method

Inventary is valued at %ﬁhe individual item level using the cost method which values inventory at the lower of the actual cost or market, at
the individual item \evél. Cost is determined using the FIFO (first-in, first-out) method. Market is determined based on the estimated net
realizable value, which generally is the merchandise selling price. We review our inventory levels in order to identify slow-moving
merchandise and broken assortments (items no longer in stock in a sufficient range of sizes) and use markdowns to clear merchandise.
Inventory value is red%.lced immediately when the selling price is marked down below cost. We estimate and accrue shortage for the
period between the last physical count and the balance sheet date. Our shortage estimate can be affected by changes in merchandise
mix and changes in acftual shortage trends. The change in shortage expense as a percentage of sales was an improvement {deterioration)
of 0.8 percentage poir}wtsl 0.1 percentage points and (0.5) percentage points for fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Long-lived Assets, impairment and Excess Facilities
We have a significant|investment in property and equipment. Depreciation and amortization are computed using estimated useful lives
of up to 39 years. Any|reduction in these estimated useful lives would result in higher annual depreciation expense for the related assets.

We review the carryinjg value of long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value of an asset mayinot be recoverable. Events that result in an impairment review include decisions to close a store, corporate facility
or distribution center, or when the carrying value of store assets is less than the projected future undiscounted cash flows. For our store
assets, if the undiscodmted future cash flows of the long-lived assets are less than the carrying value, we recognize a loss equal to the
difference between ﬂﬁe carrying value and the asset’s fair value. The fair value of the store's long-lived assets is estimated using the
discounted future cash flows of the assets based upon a rate that approximates our weighted-average cost of capital. For long-lived
assets related to our distribution centers or corporate facilities, we compare the asset's carrying value to quoted market prices in active
markets, if available, or we estimate fair value based upen the best information available in the circumstances, including prices for similar
assets or asset groups. We recorded a charge for the impairment of store assets of $22.6 million, $39.9 million and $13.9 miltion during
fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Our estimate of future cash flows is based upon our experience, knowledge and typically third-
party advice or market data. However, these estimates can be affected by factors such as future store profitability, real estate demand
and economic conditic:ms that can be difficult to predict.

The decisions to closé or sublease a store, distribution center or corporate facility space can also result in accelerated depreciation over
the revised useful lifejof the long-lived assets. For store or distribution center or corporate facility space that is under a long-term lease
and we no longer usei nor intend to use, we record a charge for lease buyout expense or the difference between our rent and the rate
at which we expect td be able to sublease the properties, net of related costs. This charge is discounted using a credit adjusted risk-free
rate. Most store closujres occur upon the lease expiration. We recorded a charge for excess and closed facilities of $8.6 million, $77.4
million and $47.3 m‘\lli(?n during fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Our sublease reserve/is sensitive to the level of sublease rent anticipated and the timing of sublease commencement. A 10 percent
reduction in our sublease rate would have resulted in an additional $4.8 million of charges as of the end of fiscal 2003. A one-year
delay in sublease corhmencement would have resulted in an additional $6.6 million charge as of the end of fiscal 2003. Additional
reserves would also Be required based on current market conditions, if management decided to sublease additional space based on
changes in future nee;ds‘
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Insurance / Self-insurance

We use a combination of insurance and self-insurance for a number of risks including workers’ compensation, general liability, automobile
liability and employee related health care benefits, a portion of which is paid by our employees. It is our policy to record our estimated
liability, as determined actuarially, by considering historical claims experience, demographic factors, severity factors and other actuarial
assumptions. Any actuarial projection of losses concerning our liability is subject to a high degree of variability. Among the causes of this
variability are unpredictable external factors affecting future inflation rates, discount rates, litigation trends, legal interpretations, benefit
level changes and claim settlement patterns.

Income Taxes

We record reserves for estimates of probable settlements of foreign and domestic tax audits. At any one time, many tax years are subject
to audit by various taxing jurisdictions. The results of these audits and negotiations with taxing authorities may affect the ultimate
settlement of these issues. We also record a valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets arising from certain net operating losses
when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of such net operating losses will not be realized. Our effective tax rate in a given
financial statement period may be materially impacted by changes in the mix and level of earnings, changes in the expected outcome of
audit controversies or changes in the deferred tax valuation allowance. We currently expect the fiscal 2004 effective tax rate to be within
a range of 38.5 percent to 39.5 percent. The actual rate will ultimately depend on several variables, including the mix of earnings between
domestic and international operations and the overall level of earnings and could also be affected by the resolution of tax contingencies
for amounts different from our current estimates.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

During January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Financial Interpretation No. 46 ("FIN 48"),
"Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” FIN 46 requires that if an entity has a controlling financial interest in a variable interest entity,
the assets, liabilities and results of activities of the variable intergst entity should be included in the consolidated financial statements of
the entity. The provisions of FIN 46 are effective immediately for all arrangements entered into after January 31, 2003. For those
arrangements entered into prior to February 1, 2003, the provisions of FIN 48 were required to be adopted at the beginning of the first
interim or annual period beginning after June 15, 2003. However, in December 2003, the FASB published a revision to FIN 46 (hereafter
referred to as “FIN 46R") to clarify some of the provisions of FIN 46, and to exempt certain entities from its requirements. Under the
new guidance, there are new effective dates for companies that have interests in structures that are commonly referred to as special-
purpose entities. The rules are effective in financial statements for periods ending after March 15, 2004. The adoption of FIN 46R did not
have any impact on our operating results or financial position, as we do not have any variable interest entities.

During April 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 149 ("SFAS 148"), “Amendment of Statement 133
on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” SFAS 149 amends and clarifies accounting for derivative instruments, including certain
derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and for hedging activities under Statement 133. SFAS 148 is effective for contracts
entered into or modified after June 30, 2003, and for hedging relationships designated after June 30, 2003. The guidance should be
applied prospectively. The adoption of SFAS 148 did not have any impact on our operating results or financial position, as we do not have
any derivative instruments that are affected by SFAS 149.

During May 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 150 {“SFAS 150"), "Accounting for Certain Financial
Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity.” SFAS 150 clarifies the accounting for certain financial instruments with
characteristics of both liabilities and equity and requires that those instruments be classified as liabilities in statements of financial
position. Previously, many companies classified these financial instruments as equity. SFAS 150 is effective for financial instruments
entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June
15, 20083. The adoption of SFAS 150 did not have any impact on our operating results or financial position, as we do not have any financial
instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity that are not already classified as liabilities.
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QUANTITATI?VE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
|

The table on the right brovides information about our market sensitive financial instruments as of January 31, 2004, and February 1, 2003.

We operate in foreign countries, which exposes us to market risk associated with foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations. Our risk
management policy isito hedge substantially all forecasted merchandise purchases for foreign operations using foreign exchange forward
contracts. We also usé forward contracts to hedge our market risk exposure associated with foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations
for certain intercompainy loans and balances denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the entity holding or issuing
the loan. These contr:acts are entered into with large, reputable financial institutions, thereby minimizing the credit exposure from our
counter-parties. Additi:onal information is presented in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Note F).

In March 2002, we issued $1.38 billion aggregate principal amount of 5.75 percent senior convertible notes due March 15, 2009, and
received net proceeds of $1.35 billion in cash. Interest is payable semi-annually on March 15 and September 15 of each year. These debt

securities are recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at their issuance amount net of unamortized discount and redemptions.

In November 2001, we issued $200 million aggregate principal amount of debt securities at an original annual interest rate of 8.15
percent, due December 15, 2005 (the “2005 notes”), and $500 million aggregate principal amount of debt securities at an original
annual interest rate ofj 8.80 percent, due December 15, 2008 (the “2008 notes”). Interest on the notes of each series is payable semi-
annually. As a result clf downgrades to our long-term credit ratings, the interest rates payable by us on our 2005 notes and 2008 notes
increased by 175 basié points to 9.90 percent per annum on the 2005 notes and to 10.55 percent per annum on the 2008 notes. During
the fourth quarter of [fiscal 2003, we repurchased $19.7 million of the 2005 notes and $37.6 million of the 2008 notes. These debt
securities are recorde}d in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at their issuance amount net of repurchases and unamortized discount.

During fiscal 1899, ouﬁr Japanese subsidiary, Gap {Japan) KK, issued $50 million aggregate principal amount of debt securities due March
1, 2009, with a fixed interest rate of 6.25 percent, payable in U.S. dollars. Interest on these debt securities is payable semi-annually. We
swapped the interest|and principal payable under these debt securities to 6.1 hillion Japanese yen with a fixed interest rate of 2.43
percent. These debt sjecurities are recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at their fair market value as of January 31, 2004.

During fiscal 1998, odr Netherlands subsidiary, Gap International B.V., issued debt securities in the aggregate principal amount of 250
million Euro, equivaler;ﬁt to $262 million at issuance, with a fixed interest rate of 5.00 percent, due September 30, 2004. Interest on these
debt securities is payjable annually. During the third quarter of fiscal 2003, we repurchased 23.4 million Euro of these debt securities,
equivalent to $27 million at the time of repurchase. These debt securities are recorded in the Consclidated Balance Sheets at their
issuance amount net of repurchases and unamortized discount and are translated into U.S. dollars at the period-end exchange rate.

During fiscal 1997, wé issued $500 million aggregate principal amount of debt securities, due September 15, 2007, with a fixed interest
rate of 6.90 percent. Ijnterest on these debt securities is payable semi-annually. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, we repurchased
$83 million of these débt securities. These debt securities are recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at their issuance amount net
of repurchases and unamortized discount.

By entering into the fixed rate borrowings, we avoid interest rate risk from variable rate fluctuations. A portion of our fixed rate borrowings
used to finance foreign operations is denominated in foreign currencies. By borrowing and repaying the loans in local currencies, we
reduce the risk associated with exchange rate fluctuations.
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(In millions except average contract rate)

Notional Maturity Dates (Fiscal Year)

Notional Unrealized
Average Amount Gain (Loss)
Contract in Sold 2006 and in U.S.
Rate {a) Currency 2004 2005 Beyond {b) Dollars (c)
Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts
Contracts—Merchandise Hedges
Sell British Pounds, buy U.S. Dollars 062 141 141 — — (24)
Sell Canadian Dollars, buy U.S. Dollars 1.37 411 411 — — (8)
Sell Japanese Yen, buy U.S. Dollars 112.78 15,510 15,510 — — (10}
Sell U.S. Dollars, buy Euros 1.19 14 14 — —_ 1
Total merchandise hedge contracts (41)
Contracts—Loan and Intercompany Hedges
Sell U.S. Dollars, buy Euros 1.25 12 12 — — —
Sell British Pounds, buy Japanese Yen Q.01 21 1 20 — (12)
Sell British Pounds, buy Euros 0.67 112 111 1 — 5
Sell British Pounds, buy U.S. Dollars 0.55 10 10 —_ —_ -
Sell Canadian Dollars, buy U.S. Dollars 1.39 118 30 88 — (3)
Sell Euros, buy Japanese Yen 0.01 7 — 7 — (3)
Total loan and intercompany hedge contracts (13)
Cross Currency Interest Rate Swap
Japanese Yen for U.S. Dollars 121.60 6,080 — — 6,080 {8)
Total foreign exchange forward contracts and cross currency interest rate swap (60)

{a) Average contract rates stated in units of sold currency per units of bought currency.

(b} No amounts mature in 2008, 2007 or 2008.

(¢} The unrealized gain (loss) represents the effect of the changes in the forward rates compared 1o the average contract rates at January 31, 2004, Of the $60 million pre-tax total
unrealized loss, approximately $41 million relates to marchandise hedges, of which approximately $25 million {net of tax) was included in accumulated other comprehensive
earnings on our Consolidated Bafance Sheets as of January 31, 2004. When these unrealized losses are recognized in future periods, we expect them to be offset to a great
extent by a corresponding gain on the merchandise transactions being hedged. Approximately $13 million of the $60 milfion balance relates to forward contracts used to hedge
the remeasurement of intercompany loans and balances. The changes in fair value of these forward contracts are recognized immediataly in our Consolidated Statements of
Operations and are offset to a great extent by the corresponding remeasurement of underlying intercompany loans and balances.

Jan. 31, 2004

Feb. 1, 2003

{In millions)

Carrying Amount
in U.S. Dollars

Fair Value (a)

Carrying Amount
in U.S. Daollars

Fair Value (a)

Notes payable, due 2003 $ — 3 — $ 500 $ 501
Notes payable, due 2004 283 286 269 246
Notes payable, due 2005 180 202 200 214
Notes payable, due 2007 415 457 498 492
Notes payable, due 2008 462 569 4399 551
Notes payable, due 2009 850 53 50 47
Total long-term debt,

including current maturities 1,380 1,667 2,016 2,081
Senior convertible notes

payable, due 2009 1,380 1,799 1,380 1,691
Total long-term debt and

senior convertible notes,

including current maturities 3 2,770 $ 3,368 $ 3,396 $ 3,742

(a) Based on the rates at which we could borrow funds with similar terms and remaining maturities at the dates presented.
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MANAGEMEiNT’S REPORT ON FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Management is resporisible for the integrity and consistency of all financial information presented in the Annual Report. The consolidated
financial statements h?ve been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
and necessarily inciud% certain amounts based on management'’s best estimates and judgments.

In fulfitling its responsibility for the reliability of financial information, management has established and maintains accounting systems and
procedures appropriately supported by internal accounting controls. Such controls include the selection and training of qualified
personnel, an organizétional structure providing for division of responsibility, communication of requirements for compliance with
approved accounting cfontroi and business practices, and a program of internal audit. The extent of our system of internal accounting
control recognizes that the cost should not exceed the benefits derived and that the evaluation of those factors requires estimates and
judgments by management. Although no system can ensure that all errors or irregularities have been eliminated, management believes
that the internal accounting controls in use provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use
or disposition, that traiisactions are executed in accordance with management's authorization and that the financial records are reliable
for preparing financial étatements and maintaining accountability for assets. The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company and subsididries have been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLF independent auditors, whose report appears below.

The Audit and FinanceiCommittee (the "Committee”) of the Board of Directors is comprised solely of independent directors who are not
officers or employees bf the Company. The Committee is responsible for recommending to the Board of Directors the selection, retention
and compensation of the independent auditors. It meets periodically with management, the independent auditors and the internal
auditors to ensure that;' they are carrying out their responsibilities. The Committee also reviews and monitors the financial, accounting and
auditing procedures oi‘ the Company in addition to reviewing the Company’s financial reports. Deloitte & Touche LLP and the internal
auditers have full and :free access to the Committee, with and without management's presence.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of The Gap, Inc.:

We have audited the a;ccompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Gap, Inc. and subsidiaries as of January 31, 2004, and February
1, 2003, and the reiate:ed consolidated statements of operations, shareholders' equity and cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in
the period ended January 31, 2004. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility
is 10 express an opinién on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our au%dits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan énd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such Eonsoiidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of The Gap, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of January 31, 2004, and February 1, 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three fiscal
years in the period ended January 31, 2004, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Dol v Vet L0 P

San Francisco, California
March 30, 2004 ‘
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

($ In millions except
per share amounts)

52 Weeks Ended Percentage
Jan. 31, 2004 to Net Sales

52 Weeks Ended

Feb. 1, 2003 to Net Sales

Percentage

52 Weeks Ended Percentage
Feb. 2, 2002 to Net Sales

Net sales $ 15,8564 100.0% $ 14,455 100.0% $ 13,848 100.0%
Cost and expenses
Cost of goods sold and
occupancy expenses 9,886 62.4 9,042 66.0 9,705 70.1
Operating expenses 4,089 258 3,901 27.0 3,806 27.5
Interest expense 234 1.5 249 1.7 109 08
Interest income (38) 0.2) (37} 0.3) (13) {0.1)
Earnings before income taxes 1,683 10.8 800 5.5 241 1.7
Income taxes 653 4.1 323 22 249 1.8
Net earnings {loss) 3 1,030 6.5% % 477 3.3% $ (8) 0.1%)
Weighted-average number
of shares—basic 892,554,538 875,545,551 860,255,419
Weighted-average number
of shares—diluted 988,177,828 881,477,888 860,255,419
Earnings (loss) per share—basic 3 1.15 $ 0.54 $ (0.01)
Earnings (loss) per share—diluted (a) 1.09 0.54 (0.01

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(a) Diluted losses per share for the 52 weeks ended February 2, 2002, are computed using the basic weighted-average number of shares outstanding and exclude 13,385,045

dilutive shares, as their effects are anti-dilutive.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

($ In millions except par value) Jan. 31, 2004 Feb. 1, 2003
Assets ' _ -
Current Assets |
Cash and equivalents $ 2,261 $ 3,027
Short-term investments 1,073 313
Restricted cash (s) 1,351 49
Cash and equivalents, sho?’t—term investments and restricted cash 4,685 3,389
Merchandise inventory ‘ 1,704 2,048
Other current assets ; 300 303
Total current assets ‘ 6,689 5,740
Property and Equipmentj
Leasehold improvemenjts 2,224 2,242
Furniture and equipment 3,591 3,439
Land and buildings ‘ 1,033 943
Construction-in-prog resfs 131 202
| 8,979 8.826
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (3,611 (3,049)
Property and equipment, net 3,368 3,777
Other assets 2886 385
Total assets 3 10,343 $ 9,902
Liabilities and Shareholc’lers' Equity
Current Liabilities i
Current maturities of ?ongi—term debt $ 283 3 500
Accounts payable ‘ 1178 1,159
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 872 874
Income taxes payable ‘r 159 193
Total current lighilities ‘ 2,492 2,726
Long-Term Liabilities
Long-term debt : 1,107 1,616
Senior convertible notes “ 1,380 1,380
Lease incentives and othér liabilities 581 621
Total long-term liabilities | 3,068 3,517
Shareholders' Equity ;
Comman stock $.05 par value
Authorized 2,300,000,000 shares; issued 976,154,229
and 868,010,453 shares; outstanding 897,202,485
and 887,322,707 shares { 49 a8
Additional paid-in capital . 732 638
Retained earnings ‘ 8,241 5,290
Accumulated other compiehensive earnings (loss) 31 (18)
Deferred compensation ‘ {9) (13)
Treasury stock, at cost | {2,261) {2,288)
Total shareholders’ equit\) 4,783 3.659
Total liabilities and shareh:olders‘ equity $ 10,343 3 8,802

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(a) See Notes A and B !
I
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

52 Weeks Ended

52 Weeks Ended

52 Weeks Ended

{($ In millions) Jan. 31, 2004 Feb. 1, 2003 Feb. 2, 2002
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net earnings {loss) $ 1,030 $ 477 $ (8)
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings {loss) to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 664 693 732

Tax benefit from exercise of stock

options and vesting of restricted stock 7 44 58

Deferred income taxes 103 6 (29)

Loss on disposal and other non-cash items

affecting net earnings 70 117 64
Change in operating assets and liabilities:

Merchandise inventory 385 {258} 122

Prepaid expenses and other 5 33 (13)

Accounts payable (10) {47) 134

Accrued expenses (79) 129 176

Deferred lease credits and other long-term liabilities (4) 44 99
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,171 1,238 1,335
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of property and equipment (272) (303) (857)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 1 9 —
Purchase of short-term investments (1,202) (472) —
Maturities and sales of short-term investments 442 159 —
Acquisition of lease rights, net increase (decrease) of other assets 5 3 (11)
Net cash used for investing activities (1,026) (604) (968)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net decrease in notes payable - 42) (735)
Net issuance of long-term debt — — 1,184
Net issuance of senior convertible notes — 1,346 —
Payments of long-term debt {668) — (250)
Restricted cash {1,303) (20) (15)
Issuance of common stock 11 153 139
Net purchase of treasury stock — — (1)
Cash dividends paid (79) (78) (76)
Net cash (used for) provided by financing activities (1,939) 1,359 256
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash 28 27 an
Net (decrease) increase in cash and equivalents {766) 2,020 812
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year 3,027 1,007 395
Cash and equivalents at end of year $ 2,261 $ 3,027 $ 1,007

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

($ In millions except |
per share amounts) |

Common Stock

Shares

Amount

Additional
Paid-in Capital

Balance at February 3, 2001

939,222,871

$ 47

$ 295

Issuance of common stock pursuant to stock option plans

9,346,228

107

Net issuance of common ;tock pursuant to management
incentive restricted stock plans

28,850

Tax benefit from exercise ‘of stock options by employees

and from vesting of restricted stock

58

Adjustments for foreign currency translation

Adjustments for ﬂuctuanons in fair market value of financial instruments,
net of tax ($7)

Reclassification of amounts to net earnings, net of tax ($9)

Purchase of treasury stock

Reissuance of treasury stock
Net {loss) ‘

Cash dividends {5.09 per share)

Balance at February 2, 2l:302

948,597,849

Issuance of commaon stock pursuant to stock option plans

19,488,004

142

Net cancellations of comrﬁon stock pursuant to management
incentive restricted stock plans

{75,500)

Tax benefit from exercise \of stock opt|ons by employees
and from vesting of restncted stock

44

Adjustments for foreign currency translation

Adjustments for ﬂuctuatlons in fair market value of financial instruments,
net of tax ($10) \

Reclassification of amounis to net earnings, net of tax ($2)

Amortization of restricted\stock and discounted stock options

Reissuance of treasury stock

(7)

Net earnings ‘

Cash dividends ($.09 per share}

Balance at February 1, 2003

968,010,453

$ 638

| .
Issuance of common stock pursuant to stock option plans

8,143,466

89

Conversion of convertible|debt

310

Tax benefit from exercise|of stock options by employees
and from vesting of restricted stock

Adjustments for foreign chrrency translation

Adjustments for ﬂuctuavcns in fair market value of financial instruments,
net of tax ($19)

Reclassification of amoums to net earnings, net of tax ($10)

Amortization of restr;cted\stook and discounted stock options

Reissuance of treasury stock

Net earnings -

Cash dividends ($.09 per share)

Balance at January 31, 2004

976,154,229

$ 732

T
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Accumulated Other

Treasury Stock

Comprehensive Deferred Comprehensive
L Retained Earnings Earnings {Loss) Compensation Shares Amount Total Earnings {Loss)
£ 4975 $ (20) 3 (12) {85,225,887) $ (2,358) $ 2,929 $ 861
B (5) 102
(1 —
58
(34) (34} {34)
i 8 8 8
(16) (16)
. 11 "
(34,500} () (1)
2,389,328 36 36
8) (8) 8)
- (76) (76)
3 4,891 3 62) $ (7} (82,871,059) $ (2,321) 3 3,009 $ (34)
(14) 129
1 M
44
60 60 60
(12) (12) {12)
_ (2) 2)
7 7
2,183,313 33 26
477 477 477
(78} (78)
3 5,290 3 (16) $ (13) (80,687,746) $ (2,288) $ 3,659 3 525
’ 2 88
7
62 62 62
(30) (30} (30)
15 15
- 6 ) 6
1,736,002 T2 25
1,030 1,030 1,030
79) (79)
3 76,241 $ 31 3 9 (78,951,744) 3 (2,261} 3 4,783 $ 1,587
GAP INC. 2003 ANNUAL REPORT 41



NOTES TO CbNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the 52 Weeks Engied January 31, 2004 (Fiscal 2003), February 1, 2003 (Fiscal 2002), and February 2, 2002 {Fiscal 2001).

Note A: Sumrr%nary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization ‘

Gap Inc. (the ”companjy, " "we,” "our") is a global specialty retailer selling casual appare!l, accessories and personal care products for
men, women and ch/ldren under a variety of brand names including Gap, Banana Republic and Old Navy. Qur principal markets consist
of the United States, Qanada, Europe and Japan, with the United States being the most significant. We sell our products through both
traditional retail stores and online stores.

|
{

Consolidation

The consolidated ﬂnanjcia| statements include the accounts of the company and its subsidiaries. All intercompany transactions have
been eliminated.

Translation adjustment$ result from translating foreign subsidiaries’ financial statements into U.S. dollars. Balance sheet accounts are
translated at exchangej rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Income statement accounts are translated at average exchange rates
during the year. Resulting translation adjustments are included in accurnulated other comprehensive earnings (loss) in shareholders’ equity.

Fiscal Year ‘
Our fiscal year is a 52-jor 53-week period ending on the Saturday closest to January 31. Fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001 all consisted
of 52 weeks. :

Use of Estimatesj

The preparation of ﬁnéncial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
requires managementito make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets andl|liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actua}l results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassificationsi

Certain amounts from the prior periods have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation. These reclassifications had
no effect on net eamiq}gs, as previously reported.

Segments

Operating segments may be aggregated into a single operating segment if the segments are similar in each of the following areas:
economic characterisﬂfcs, nature of products and services, nature of the production processes, type or class of customers, methods used
to distribute the produéts or provide services and regulatory environment. Our brands have been aggregated into one reportable segment
given that they exhibit|similarities in the above mentioned categories.

Revenues of intematio}na\ retail operations were $2.3 billion, $1.9 billion and $1.8 billion, and represented 14.8 percent, 13.3 percent and
13.1 percent of our revenues for fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Long-term assets of international operations, including retail
and sourcing, were $593 million and $633 million, and represented 16.4 percent and 15.3 percent of our long-term assets as of the end

of fiscal 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Cash and Equivailents

Cash and equivalents)represent cash and short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities up to three months or less.
Outstanding checks classified in accounts payable on the Consolidated Balance Sheets totaled $115 million and $89 million as of the end
of fiscal 2003 and 200?, respectively.
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Short-term Investments

We have short-term investments, which generally have maturities of more than three months and less than one year, from the date of
purchase. Our short-term investments are classified as held to maturity based on our positive intent and ability to hold the securities to
maturity. Primarily all securities held are U.S. government and agency securities and bank certificates of deposit and are stated at
amortized cost, which approximates fair market value. Income related to these securities is reported as a component of interest income.
At January 31, 2004, we had $1.04 billion in U.S. government and agency securities and $35 million invested in bank certificates of
deposit. At February 1, 2003, we had $313 million in U.S. government and agency securities.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash represents cash that serves as collateral to our letter of credit agreements and other cash that is restricted from withdrawal
for use. As of January 31, 2004, restricted cash represents the restriction of $1.24 billion of cash that serves as coliateral to our letter of
credit agreements, which are used to pay vendors for inventory, and $111 million of other cash that is restricted from withdrawal for use.
Restricted cash classified in current assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets totaled $1.35 billion as of January 31, 2004.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value because of their short-term maturities. Qur derivative financial
instruments are recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value and are determined using quoted market rates. We had no
firm commitment hedges in fiscal 2003. See Note F for further discussion.

Merchandise Inventory

Inventory is valued using the cost method, which values inventory at the lower of the actual cost or market, at the individual item level. Cost
is determined using the FIFO (first-in, first-out) method. Market is determined based on the estimated net realizable value, which generally
is the merchandise selling price. We review our inventory levels in order to identify slow-moving merchandise and broken assortments
{items no longer in stock in a sufficient range of sizes) and use markdowns to clear merchandise. Inventory value is reduced immediately
when the selling price is marked down below cost. We estimate and accrue shortage for the period between the last physical count and
the balance sheet date. Our shortage estimate can be affected by changes in merchandise mix and changes in actual shortage trends.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets. Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Category Term

LLeasehold improvements Life of the lease, not to exceed 12 vears
Furniture and equipment Up to 10 years

Buildings 39 years

Interest costs related to assets under construction are capitalized during the construction period. Interest of $3 million, $11 million and
$25 million was capitalized in fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively

Lease Rights

Lease rights, representing costs incurred to acquire the lease of a specific commercial property, are recorded at cost and are amortized
over the estimated useful lives of the respective leases, not to exceed 20 years. The gross carrying value and accumulated amortization
of lease rights was $170 million and $69 million, respectively, as of January 31, 2004, and $169 million and $59 million, respectively, as
of February 1, 2003. Lease rights amortization was $9.1 million, $3.2 million and $9.5 million in fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
The estimated annual amortization expense for lease rights each year through fiscal 2008 is about $9.0 million.
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Long-lived Assets, Impairment and Excess Facilities

We have a signiﬂcanti investment in property and equipment. Depreciation and amortization are computed using estimated useful lives
of up to 39 years. Any, reduction in these estimated useful lives would result in higher annual depreciation expense for the related assets.

When facts and circujmstances indicate that the carrying values of our long-lived assets, including intangibles, may be impaired, an
evaluation of recovera:bil‘\ty is performed by comparing the carrying value of the assets to projected future cash flows in addition to other
guantitative and qualijtative analyses. Upon indication that the carrying value of such assets may not be recoverable, we recognize an
impairment loss in ouf operating expenses on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. We recorded a charge for the impairment of
store assets of $22.6}mi\lion, $39.9 miltion and $13.9 million during fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2007, respectively.

The decisions to closé or sublease a store, distribution center or corporate facility space can also result in accelerated depreciation over
the revised useful life|of the long-lived assets. For store or distribution center or corporate facility space that are under long-term leases
and we no longer use nor intend to use, we record a charge for lease buyout expense or the difference betwesn our rent and the rate
at which we expect tc} be able to sublease the properties, net of related costs. This charge is discounted using a credit adjusted risk-free
rate. Most store c\osgres occur upon the lease expiration. We recorded a charge for excess and closed facilities of $8.6 million, $77.4
million and $47.3 miltion during fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Insurance / Self-Insurance
|

We use a combination of insurance and self-insurance for a number of risks including workers’ compensation, general liability, automobile
liabifity and employeedrelated health care benefits, a portion of which is paid by our employees. Liabilities associated with these risks are
estimated in part by cpnsidering historical claims experience, demographic factors, severity factors and other actuarial assumptions.

\
Revenue Recognition
We recognize revenué for store sales at the point at which the customer pays at the register. For online sales, revenue is recognized at
the time goods are shipped. Customers typically receive goods within a few days of being shipped. Allowances for estimated returns are
recorded for store sakas as well as online sales. We recognize revenue from gift cards at the time the gift cards are redeemed.

Rent Expense

Certain of our lease agreements provide for scheduled rent increases during the lease term. Minimum rental expenses are recognized
. . N
on a straight-line basis over the terms of the leases.

Advertising

Costs asscciated with the production of advertising, such as writing copy, printing and other costs, are expensed as incurred. Costs
associated with communicating advertising that has been produced, such as television and magazine, are expensed when the advertising

event takes place. Ad\?/ertising costs were $509 million, $496 million and $423 million in fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accéunted for using the asset and liability method. Under this method, deferred income taxes arise from temporary
differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts in the consolidated financial statements. A valuation
allowance is established against deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets
will not be realized.

[
Stock-based Awards

We account for stock-based awards to employees and directors using the intrinsic value method of accounting in accordance with
Accounting Principles 1Board Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” Under the intrinsic value method, when the
exercise price of the émp\oyee stock options equals the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant, no compensation
expense is recogm’zed in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Restricted stock and discounted stock option awards, which are
granted at less than fai:r market value, result in the recognition of deferred compensation. Deferred compensation is shown as a reduction
of shareholders’ equity and is amortized to operating expenses over the vesting period of the stock award. We amortize deferred
compensation for each vesting layer of a stock award using the straight-line method.
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Based on additional disclosure requirements under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.148, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation—Transition and Disclosure of Amendment of FASB Statement No.123,"” and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No.123 ("SFAS 123"), "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” the following table illustrates the effect of net earnings (loss) and
earnings (loss) per share if we had applied the fair-value recognition provisions of SFAS 123.

52 Weeks Ended 52 Weeks Ended 52 Weeks Ended
Jan. 31, 2004 Feb. 1, 2003 Feb. 2, 2002

Net earnings (loss) {in millions)
As reported 3 1,030 $ 477 $ (8)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense
included in reported net earnings, net of related tax effects 1 4 8
Deduct: Total stock-hased employee compensation expense
determined under fair-value-based method for all awards,
net of related tax sffects (53) (42} (86)
Pro forma $ 978 $ 439 $ (86)
Earnings (loss) per share
As reported—basic $ 1.15 $ 0.55 $ (0.01
Pro forma—basic 1.10 0.50 (0.10)
As reported—diluted 1.09 0.54 0.01
Pro forma—diluted 1.03 0.50 (0.10)

Foreign Currency Translation

Translation gains and losses of foreign operations that use local currencies as the functional currency are accumulated and reported as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive earnings {loss) within total shareholders’ equity. Transaction gains and losses that arise
from exchange rate fluctuations on transactions denominated in a currency other than the local functional currency are included in the
results of operations. Cumulative net foreign currency translation losses in accumulated other comprehensive gains (losses) were $62
million, $60 million and ($34) million at January 31, 2004, February 1, 2003, and February 2, 2002, respectively.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

During January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") issued Financial Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 46"),
"Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” FIN 46 requires that if an entity has a controlling financial interest in a variable interest entity,
the assets, liabilities and results of activities of the variable interest entity should be included in the consolidated financial statements of
the entity. The provisions of FIN 46 are effective immediately for all arrangements entered into after January 31, 2003. For those
arrangements entered into prior to February 1, 2003, the provisions of FIN 46 were required to be adopted at the beginning of the first
interim or annual period beginning after June 15, 2003. However, in December 2003, the FASB published a revision to FIN 46 (hereafter
referred to as "FIN 46R") to clarify some of the provisions of FIN 46, and to exempt certain entities from its requirements. Under the
new guidance, there are new effective dates for companies that have interests in structures that are commonly referred to as special-
purpose entities. The rules are effective in financial statements for periods ending after March 15, 2004. The adoption of FIN 46R did not
have any impact on our operating results or financial position, as we do not have any variable interest entities.

During April 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 149 ("SFAS 149"), “Amendment of Statement 133
on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” SFAS 149 amends and clarifies accounting for derivative instruments, including certain
derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and for hedging activities under Statement 133. SFAS 149 is effective for contracts
entered into or modified after June 30, 2003, and for hedging relationships designated after June 30, 2003. The guidance should be
applied prospectively. The adoption of SFAS 149 did not have any impact on our operating results or financial position, as we do not have
any derivative instruments that are affected by SFAS 149.
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During May 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 150 (“SFAS 150"}, *“Accounting for Certain Financial
Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity.” SFAS 150 clarifies the accounting for certain financial instruments with
characteristics of both liabilities and equity and requires that those instruments be classified as liabilities in statements of financial
position. Previously, many companies classified these financial instruments as equity. SFAS 150 is effective for financial instruments
entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June

15, 2003. The adoptior? of SFAS 150 did not have any impact on our operating results or financial position, as we da not have any financial

instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity that are not already classified as liabilities.
!

Note B: Debt, Senior Convertible Notes and Other Credit Arrangements

|
In June 2003, we replaced our existing $1.4 billion secured two-year credit facility scheduled to expire in March 2004 with a new three-
year secured $750 million revolving credit facility {the “new Facility”). In addition, we executed agreements securing $1.2 billion in letter
of credit issuing capac}ity The letter of credit agreements also have three-year terms and are secured by approximately $1.24 billion in
cash, which is mcludéd in restricted cash on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. The new Facility is available for general corporate
purposes. The fees re\“ated 1o the new Facility fluctuate based on our long-term senior unsecured credit ratings and our leverage ratio.
The new Facility contafins financial and other covenants, including, but not limited to, fimitations on capital expenditures, liens and cash
dividends and ma\'nter%ance of certain financial ratios, including a fixed charge coverage ratic and a leverage ratio. The letter of credit
agreements contain a fixed charge coverage ratio that is more lenient than the ratio in the new Facility. Viclation of these covenants could
result in a default undér the new Facility and letter of credit agreements, which would permit the participating banks to restrict our ability
to further access the n“ew Facility for letters of credit and advances, terminate our ability to request letters of credit pursuant to the letter
of credit agreements a%wd reguire the immediate repayment of any outstanding advances under the new Facility. In addition, such a default
could, under certain circumstances, permit the holders of our outstanding unsecured debt to accelerate payment of such obligations. We
were in compliance WiFh these covenants as of January 31, 2004,
Letters of credit represient a payment undertaking guaranteed by a bank on our behalf to pay the vendor a given amount of money upon
presentation of specific documents demonstrating that merchandise has shipped. Vendor payables are recorded in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets at the itime of merchandise title transfer, although the letters of credit are generally issued prior to this.
As of January 31, 2004, we had $732 million in trade letters of credit issued under our lstter of credit agreements. There were no
drawings under the ne;vv Facility.
In March 2002, we issued $1.38 billion aggregate principal amount of 5.75 percent senior convertible notes due March 15, 2009, and
received net proceeds| of $1.35 billion in cash net of underwriting and other fees. Interest is payable semi-annually on March 15 and
September 15 of each; year. These debt securities are recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at their issuance amounts net of
unamortized discount and redemptions. We have an option to call the notes on or after March 20, 2005. The notes are convertible, unless
previously redeemed or repurchased, at the option of the holder at any time prior to maturity, into shares of our common stock at a
conversion price of $716.12 per share, subject to adjustment in certain events, for a total of 85,607,630 shares. If converted, these
additional shares would reduce our future basic earnings per share. Prior to conversion, the convertible notes are potentialty dilutive to
our earnings per shareiat certain earnings levels. The effects of these dilutive securities on our earnings per share are computed using
the if-converted metho:d. The net proceeds are available for general corporate purposes.

Gross interest paymen:ts were approximately $235 million, $209 million and $117 million in fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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A surmrnary of our long-term debt and senior convertible notes is as follows:

Jan. 31,

2004

Feb. 1, 2003

Carrying Amount

Carrying Amount

($ In millions} in U.S. Dollars Fair Value (a) in U.S. Dollars Fair Value (a)
Notes payable, 5.625%,

interest due semi-annually, due May 2003 3 — $ — 3 500 3 501
Notes payable, 5.00%,

interest due annually, due September 2004 283 286 269 246
Notes payable, 8.15% (9.90%),

interest due semi-annually, due December 2005 (b} 180 202 200 214
Notes payable, 6.80%,

interest due semi-annually, due September 2007 415 457 498 492
Notes payable, 8.80% (10.55%),

interest due semi-annually, due December 2008 (b) 462 569 499 551
Notes payable, 6.25%,

interest due semi-annually, due March 2009 50 53 50 47
Total long-term debt, including current maturities 1,390 1.567 2,016 2,051
Senior convertible notes payable, 5.75%,

interest due semi-annually, due March 2009 1,380 1,799 1,380 1,691
Total long-term debt and senior convertible notes,

including current maturities $ 2,770 $ 3,366 3 3,396 3 3,742

{a) Based on the rates at which we could borrow funds with similar terms and remaining maturities at the dates presented.
(b) The interest rate payable on these notes is subject to increase (decrease) by 0.25 percent for each rating downgrade {upgrade) by the rating agencies. The rate in parentheses

reflects the current rate effective June 15, 2002.

Note C: Income Taxes

Income taxes consisted of the following:

52 Weeks Ended

52 Weeks Ended

52 Weeks Ended

{In millions) Jan. 31, 2004 Feb. 1, 2003 Feb. 2, 2002
Current

Federal $ 473 3 251 $ 110
State 79 23 56
Foreign 117 63 109
Total current 669 337 275
Deferred

Federal (5) (23) (19)
State (18) 14 2
Foreign 7 (5) 9
Total deferred (16) (14) (26
Total provision $ 653 $ 323 3 243

The foreign component of pretax earnings before eliminations in fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001 was approximately $432 million, $318 million
and $282 million, respectively. Except where required by U.S. tax law, no provision was made for U.S. income taxes on the undistributed
earnings of the foreign subsidiaries, as we intend to utilize those earnings in the foreign operations for an indefinite period of time or
repatriate such earnings only when tax-effective to do so. That portion of accumulated undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries was

approximately $668 million at January 31, 2004.
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The difference betweejan the effective income tax rate and the U.S. federal income tax

52 Weeks Ended

rate is summarized as follows:

52 Weeks Ended

52 Weeks Ended

| Jan. 31, 2004 Feb. 1, 2003 Feb. 2, 2002
Federal tax rate } 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes, less ;federa\ benefit 2.1 3.1 35
Foreign ‘ 22 23 94
Other ] {0.5) 0.0 1.1
Tax rate before charge ; 38.8% 40.4% 48.0%
Tax charge (a) ‘ — — 54.2
Effective tax rate ‘ 38.8% 40.4% 103.2%
(a) The tax charge of $131 minion in fiscal 2001 primarity reflected changes in estimates of prabable settlements of foreign and domestic tax audits.

|
Deferred tax assets (Iir‘abilities) consisted of the following:

|
{In millions) ; Jan. 31, 2004 Feb. 1, 2003
Compensation and benefits accruals $ 37 $ 33
Scheduled rent 1 78 84
Inventory capitalization ar{wd other adjustments 7 48
Nondeductible accruals 78 71
Other 33 27
State NOL | 44 50
Gross deferred tax assetjs 277 293
State NOL valuation al\ov:vance (18) (35)
Depreciation and amortizjation (123) (38)
Fair value of financial instruments included in
accumulated other compjrehensive earnings {loss) 15 6
Other f 33) {14)
Gross deferred tax liabilities (141) (48)
Net deferred tax assets $ 118 3 212

Net deferred tax asse{ts at January 31, 2004, and February 1, 2003, are included in other current assets {approximately $89 million and
$63 million, respectivtey), and other assets (approximately $29 million and $149 million, respectively) in the Consclidated Balance Sheets.

At January 31, 2004, we had $43.7 million of state net operating loss carryovers that may be utilized to reduce the tax liabilities of future
years. A portion of thé state net operating loss carryovers was reduced by a valuation allowance of $17.6 million for the losses of various
members of the affilidted group in states that require separate company filings. The losses begin to expire in fiscal 2004.

Cash tax payments Wiere approximately $616 miliion, $156 million and $136 million in fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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Note D: Leases

We lease most of our store premises and some of our headquarters facilities and distribution centers. These operating leases expire at
various dates through 2033.

The aggregate minimum non-cancelable annual lease payments under leases in effect on January 31, 2004, are as follows:

Fiscal Year . {In millions)
2004 $ 924
2005 835
2006 693
2007 564
2008 484
Thereafter 1,929
Total minimum lease commitment $ 5,429

Many leases also provide for payment of operating expenses, such as common area charges, real estate taxes and additional rent based
on a percentage of sales.

Many leases include options that allow us to extend the lease term beyond the initial commitment periods, subject to terms agreed to
at lease inception. Some leases also include early termination options, which can be exercised under specific conditions.

For leases that contain predetermined fixed escalations of the minimum rentals, we recognize the related rental expense on a straight-
line basis and record the difference between the recognized rental expense and amounts payable under the leases as deferred lease
credits. At January 31, 2004, and February 1, 2003, this fiability amounted to approximately $204 million and $197 million, respectively.

Cash or rent abatements received upon entering into certain store leases are recognized on a straight-line basis as a reduction to rent
expense over the lease term. The unamortized portion is included in deferred lease credits and other liabilities. At January 31, 2004, and

February 1, 2003, the long-term deferred credit was approximately $252 million and $293 million, respectively.

Rental expense for all operating leases was as follows:

52 Weeks Ended 52 Weeks Ended 52 Weeks Ended
{In millions} Jan. 31, 2004 Feb. 1, 2003 Feb. 2, 2002
Minimum rentals 3 847 $ 855 $ 788
Contingent rentals 146 123 135
Total $ 993 $ 978 $ 923

GAP INC. 2003 ANNUAL REPORT 49




Note E: OthEIj' Operating Charges
!

In January 2004, we $igned an agreement to sell our Gap brand operations in Germany, effective August 1, 2004. Gap brand operations
in Germany represenﬂ our smallest international retail business, and with only 10 store locations, account for well under 1 percent of total
company sales. As a ;resu\t of our decision, we recognized an operating expense charge of $14 million to write down the assets to their
fair value, which was|estimated based upon the expected net selling price.

During 2001, as a resb\t of the rationalization of our global distribution center network, we announced plans to close distribution facilities
in Erlanger, Kentuckyi(”Erlanger“), Basildon, England (“Basildon”), and Roosendaal, Holland (“Roosendaal”). The Basildon facility was
closed during the firfst quarter of fiscal 2002, the Roosendaal facility was closed during the second quarter of fiscal 2002 and the
Erlanger facility was iclosed during the third quarter of fiscal 2002. We lease the Erlanger and Basildon facilities, and we own the
Roosendaal facility.

The Roosendaal facilitiy, including land and building, is currently on the market for sale. The total carrying value of the remaining land and
building as of Januar\j/ 31, 2004, was £1.9 million, equivalent to $3.5 million. Our lease associated with the Erlanger facility expired in
February 2003, and th‘p lease associated with the Basildon facility expired in October 2003.

Facilities-related charges associated with the distribution center closures include costs associated with tease terminations, facilities
restoration, severanc%e and equipment removal. Remaining cash expenditures of $4.2 million associated with facility closures as of
February 1, 2003, havie been paid.

During 2001, we con;solidated and downsized corporate facilities in our San Francisco and San Bruno campuses as part of our cost
containment efforts. We identified 361,383 square feet of excess facility space and recorded charges of $47.3 million in fiscal 2001.
During 2002, based on a review of real estate market conditions, we revised our sublease income and sublease commencement
projections and assur‘}nptions‘ Additionally, in fiscal 2002 we considered our corporate facilities space needs and identified additional
excess facility space éf 193,228 square feet. As a result of these actions, we recorded an additional sublease loss charge of $77.4 million

in fiscal 2002. ‘

Our sublease loss chérges primarily relate to the net present value of the difference between the contract rent obligations and the rate
at which we e><pec‘[er:‘l to be able to sublease the properties. In the third quarter of fiscal 2003, based on the status of our efforts to lease
vacant office space including a review of real estate market conditions, we revised our subleasé projections and recorded an additional
sublease loss charge of $8.6 million. In addition, in fiscal 2003 we recorded accretion of $1.3 million of interest for total adjustments to
our provision of $9.9 rjni\lion‘ The additiona! sublease loss charge was recorded in operating expenses in our Consolidated Statements of
Operations. Remainin-?g cash expenditures associated with the sublease loss reserve are expected to be paid over the remaining various
lease terms through 2017. Based on our current assumptions as of January 31, 2004, we expect the sublease of our excess facilities to
resultin a tota! reductfon of approximately $247 million in future rent expense and $111 million in cash savings over the various remaining

|
lease terms through 2017,
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The remaining reserve balance related to the distribution center exit costs and sublease loss as of January 31, 2004, was as follows:

Severance and Facilities Sublease Loss
{In millions) Outplacement Charges Reserve Total
Balance at February 3, 2001 $ — 3 — $ — 3 —
Additional provision 30 7 47 84
Cash payments (25) — (3) (28)
Balance at February 2, 2002 $ 5 3 7 3 44 3 56
Additional provision — m 80 79
Cash payments (5) 2) Q) (18)
Balance at February 1, 2003 $ — 3 4 $ 1156 3 19
Additional provision — (1} 10 9
Cash payments —_ 3) (23) (26)
Balance at January 31, 2004 $ — $ — $ 102 $ 102

Note F: Financial Instruments

Derivative Financial Instruments

We operate in foreign countries, which exposes us to market risk associated with foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations. Cur risk
management policy is to hedge substantially all forecasted merchandise purchases for foreign operations and intercompany obligations
that bear foreign exchange risk using foreign exchange forward contracts. We do not enter into derivative financial instruments for trading
purposes.

Forward contracts used to hedge forecasted merchandise purchases are designated as cash flow hedges. At January 31, 2004, we had
forward contracts designated as cash flow hedges of forecasted merchandise purchases with a fair-value loss of $41 million. These
forward contracts mature at various dates through January 2005 to buy and sell the equivalent of approximately $682 million in foreign
currencies (Buy contracts: approximately 12 million Euro; Sell contracts: approximately 141 million British pounds, 411 million Canadian
dollars and 16 billion Japanese yen) at the contracted rates.

Changes in the fair value of forward contracts designated as cash flow hedges are recorded as a component of comprehensive earnings
within total shareholders’ equity, and are recognized in cost of goods sold and occupancy expenses in the same period during which the
hedged merchandise affects earnings. An unrealized loss of approximately $25 million, net of tax, has been recorded in accumulated
other comprehensive earnings (loss) at January 31, 2004, and will be recognized in cost of goods sold and occupancy expenses over the
next 12 months. The majority of the critical terms of the forward contracts and the forecasted foreign merchandise purchases, are the
same. As a result, there were no material amounts reflected in fiscal 2003 earnings resulting from hedge ineffectiveness.

We also use forward contracts to hedge our market risk exposure associated with foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations for certain
intercompany loans and balances denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the entity holding or issuing the
intercompany loan and balance. At January 31, 2004, the fair value of these forward contracts was approximately $5 million in assets and
$19 million in liabilities. Gains and losses on these currency forward contracts, as well as on the underlying loans and intercompany
balances, are recognized in operating expenses in the same period and generally offset.

In addition, we used cross-currency interest rate swaps to swap the interest and principal payable of $50 million debt securities of our
Japanese subsidiary, Gap {(Japan) KK, from a fixed interest rate of 6.25 percent, payable in U.S. dollars, 1o 8.1 billion Japanese yen with
a fixed interest rate of 2.43 percent. At January 31, 2004, the fair market value of the swaps was a $6 million loss.
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Note G: Employee Benefit and Incentive Stock Compensation Plans

Retirement Planjs

We have a qualified d:eﬁned contribution retirement plan, called GapShare, which is available to employees who meet certain age and
service reguirements. Fhis plan permits employees to make contributions up to the maximum limits allowable under the Internal Revenue
Code. Under the plan, we match in cash all or a portion of employees’ contributions under a predetermined formula. Our contributions
vest immediately. Our\contributions 10 the retirement plan in fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001 were approximately $28 million, $26 million and
$23 million, respectivé\y.

|
A nonqualified Executive Deferred Compensation Plan established on January 1, 1999, allows eligible employees to defer compensation
up to a maximum amount. We do not match any employees’ contributions under the current plan.

A Deferred Compensaition Plan was established on August 26, 1997, for nonemployee members of the Board of Directors. Under this plan,
Board members may elect to defer receipt of eligible compensation on a pre-tax basis for serving as our nonemployee directors. Electing
Board members are gr;amted options to purchase shares of our common stock at an exercise price that is discounted to reflect an amount up
to the foregone retaine}'r. All options are fully exercisable upon the date granted and expire on the earlier of seven years after grant, three years
after retirement, death} or disability, or three months after any other termination from the Board. We may issue up to 675,000 shares under
the plan. Outstanding dptions at January 31, 2004, February 1, 2003, and February 2, 2002, were 170,845, 143,467 and 101,282, respectively.

Incentive Stock Qompensation Plans

The 1996 Stock Opticin and Award Plan (the “1996 Plan”) was established on March 26, 1996, and amended and restated on January
28, 2003. The Board\‘authorized 123,341,342 shares for issuance under the 1996 Plan, which includes shares available under the
Management Inoentivie Restricted Stock Plan and an earlier stock option plan established in 1981, both of which were superseded by the
1996 Plan. The 1996|Plan empowers the Compensation and Management Development Committes of the Board of Directors (the
“Committee”) to avva:rd compensation primarily in the form of nonqualified stock options or restricted stock to key employees. The 2002
Stock Option Plan (thé 2002 Plan”), formerly known as Stock Up on Success, was established on January 1, 1999. The Board authorized
52,500,000 shares for issuance under the 2002 Plan, which includes shares available under an earlier stock option plan established in
1999 that was merged with the 2002 Plan. The 2002 Plan empowers the Committee to award nonqualified stock options to non-officer
employees. Stock optlions generally expire 10 years from the grant date, three months after termination, or one year after the date of
retirement or death, nc earlier. Stock options generally vest over a four-year period, with shares becoming exercisable in equal annual
installments of 25 per;cent Nonqgualified stock options are generally issued at fair market value but may be issued at prices less than or
greater than the fair m:arket value at the date of grant or other prices as determined by the Committee. Total compensation cost for those
stock opticons issued ét less than fair market value and for the restricted shares issued was approximately $1 million, $4 million and $5

mitlion in fiscal 2003, ?OOZ and 2001, respectively.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

We have an Emp\oye(ja Stock Purchase Plan under which eligible U.S. employees may purchase our common stock at 85 percent of the
lower of the closing price on the New York Stock Exchange on the first or last day of the six-month purchase period. Employees pay for their
stock purchases throubh payroll deductions at a rate equal to any whole percentage from 1 percent to 15 percent. There were 1,626,393,
2,159,217 and 2,350,¢49 shares issued under the plan during fiscal 2003, 2002 and 20071, respectively. All shares were acquired from
treasury stock. At JaanJary 31, 2004, there were 10,024,484 shares reserved for future issuances.

During fiscal 2000, we established an Employee Stock Purchase Plan for employees in the United Kingdom. Under the plan, all eligible
employees may purcfj}ase our common stock at the lower of the closing price on the New York Stock Exchange on the first or last day
of the six-month purc‘hase period. We provide a match of one share for every seven shares purchased. Employees pay for their stock
purchases through paYroH deductions from £10 to £125 per month, not to exceed the lesser of either £750 per each six-month purchase
period or 10 percent df gross annual base salary per tax year. At January 31, 2004, £1 was equivalent to $1.82. During fiscal 2003, 23,371
shares were issued ijder the plan. All shares were acquired from treasury stock. At January 31, 2004, there were 921,853 shares
reserved for future iss:uances.

i
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Note H: Shareholders’ Equity and Stock Options

Common and Preferred Stock

The Board of Directors is authorized to issue 60,000,000 shares of Class B common stock, which is convertible into shares of common
stock on a share-for-share basis. Transfer of the shares is restricted. In addition, the holders of the Class 8 common stock have six votes
per share on most matters and are entitled to a lower cash dividend. No Class B shares have been issued.

The Board of Directors is authorized to issue 30,000,000 shares of one or more series of preferred stock and to establish at the time of
1Issuance the issue price, dividend rate, redemption price, liquidation value, conversion features and such other terms and conditions of
each series (including voting rights) as the Board of Directors deems appropriate, without further action on the part of the shareholders.
No preferred shares have been issued.

Stock Options

Under our stock option plans, nonqualified options to purchase common stock are granted to officers, directors and eligible employees
at exercise prices equal to the fair market value of the stock at the date of grant or as determined by the Compensation and Management
Development Committee of the Board of Directors.

The following table summarizes stock option activity for all employee stock option plans:

Weighted-Average

Shares Exercise Price
Balance at February 3, 2001 97,076,095 $ 21.29
Granted 30,450,716 15.85
Exercised (9,367.810) 11.27
Canceled (9,027,433) 29.12
Balance at February 2, 2002 . 109,131,568 3 19.95
Granted 14,170,528 12.50
Exercised (19,475,687} 8.73
Canceled (23,334,240) 26,89
Balance at February 1, 2003 80,492,169 $ 20.12
Granted 26,782,766 14.13
Exercised (8,229,703} 11.24
Canceled (16,354,458} 22.04
Balance at January 31, 2004 82,690,774 $ 18.68

Qutstanding options at January 31, 2004, have expiration dates ranging from November 2004 to January 2014.

At January 31, 2004, we reserved 176,937,314 shares of our common stock, including 1,518,537 treasury shares, for the exercise of
stock options. There were 94,246,540, 74,175,893 and 44,801,509 shares available for granting of options at January 31, 2004, February
1, 2003, and February 2, 2002, respectively. Options for 37,292,786, 39,249,141 and 44,670,144 shares were exercisable as of January
31, 2004, February 1, 2003, and February 2, 2002, respectively, and had a weighted-average exercise price of $22.53, $21.55 and $14.21
at those dates.

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding and exercisable at January 31, 2004:
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Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

| Number Weighted-Average Number
} Outstanding at Remaining Contractual Weighted-Average Exercisable at Weighted-Average
Range of Exercise Prices Jan. 31, 2004 Life (in Years) Exercise Price Jan. 31, 2004 Exercise Price
$ 285 to $1287 ‘ 28,727,257 7.76 $11.32 6,747,538 $ 889
1295 to 16.37 : 21,796,794 7.82 14.38 8,968,191 14.36
16.62 to 27.80 ‘ 21,116,625 6.74 21.43 12,485,616 22.20
27.87 to 49.53 j 11,050,198 5.96 41.06 9,091,441 41.19
$ 285 to $4953 82,690,774 7.27 $ 1868 37,292,786 $ 2253

We account for stock»based awards to employees and directors using the intrinsic value method of accounting in accordance with
Accounting Principles $oard Opinion No. 25 {("APB 25"), “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” Under APB 25, because the
exercise price of employee stock options equals the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant, no compensation expense
is recognized in the Corhsolidated Statements of Operations.

We are required und‘er Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (“SFAS 123"), “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” to dis}close pro forma information regarding option grants made to our employees based on specified valuation

techniques that producé estimated compensation charges.

Pro forma information under SFAS 123 is as follows:

52 Weeks Ended 52 Weeks Ended 52 Weeks Ended
Jan. 31, 2004 Feb. 1, 2003 Feb. 2, 2002

Net earnings (loss) (in millions)
As reported 3 1,030 $ 477 3 8)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense
included in reported net earnings, net of related tax effects 1 4 8
Deduct: Total stock-based %employee compensation expense
determined under fair-value-based method for all awards,
net of related tax effects | (53) (42) (86)
Pro forma | $ 978 $ 439 $ 86)
Earnings (loss) per share
As reported—basic $ 1.15 $ 0.55 $ (0.01)
Pro forma—basic | 1.10 0.50 0.10)
As reported—diluted ‘ 1.09 0.54 (0.01)

Pro forma—diluted ! 103 0.50 0.10)

The value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted-

average assumptions: -

! Jan. 31, 2004 Feb. 1, 2003 Feb. 2, 2002
Expected dividend yield 0.53% 0.61% 0.63%
Risk-free interest rate ; 2.39% 2.44% 3.45%
Expected volatility 1 50% 48% 47%
Expected life (in years) 4 5 4
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Under the Black-Scholes option pricing model, the weighted-average fair value of the stock options granted during fiscal 2003, 2002 and
2001 was $5.36, $5.41 and $5.74, respectively.

Note I: Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic earnings {loss) per share is computed using the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the
period. Diluted earnings per share inciudes the additional dilutive effect of our potentially dilutive securities, which includes certain stock
options and unvested shares of restricted stock, calculated using the treasury stock method, and convertible notes which are potentially
dilutive at certain earnings levels calculated using the if-converted method. The following summarizes the incremental shares from the
potentially dilutive securities:

52 Weeks Ended 52 Weeks Ended 52 Weeks Ended
‘ Jan. 31, 2004 Feb. 1, 2003 Feb. 2, 2002
Earnings {loss)—basic (in millions) 3 1,030 $ 477 $ (8)
Earnings (loss)—diluted (in millions) 1.078 477 8
Weighted-average number of shares—basic {in thousands) 892,565 875,546 860,255
Incremental shares from:
Stock options 10,015 5,932 —
Restricted stock — — —
Convertible bond 85,608 — —_
Weighted-average number of shares—diluted (in thousands) 988,178 881,478 860,255
Earnings (loss) per share—basic $ 1.15 $ 0.55 $ 0.01
Earnings {loss) per share—diluted 1.09 0.54 (0.01)

Excluded from the above computations of weighted-average shares for diluted earnings (loss) per share were options to purchase,
30,788,277, 73,472,472 and 43,282,284 shares of common stock and 1,194, 88,080 and 123,303 shares of unvested restricted stock for
fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The calculation above also excludes senior convertible notes, which are convertible to
79,728,274 shares of common stock, during the 52 weeks ended February 1, 2003, because their inclusion would have an anti-dilutive
effect on earnings per share. In addition, diluted losses per share for fiscal 2001 is computed using the basic weighted-average number
of shares outstanding and excludes 13,395,045 dilutive shares as their effect is anti-dilutive.

Note J: Guarantees

We have applied the measurement and disclosure provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 45 (“FIN 45"), “Guarantor's Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of the Indebtedness of Others,” 1o our agreements that contain
guarantee and certain indemnification clauses. FIN 45 requires that upon issuance of a guarantee, the guarantor must disclose and
recognize a liability for the fair value of the obligation it assumes under the guarantee. The initial recognition and measurement provisions
of FIN 45 are effective for guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. As of January 31, 2004, we did not have any material
guarantees that were issued or modified subsequent to December 31, 2002.

However, we are a party to a variety of contractual agreements under which we may be abligated to indemnify the other party for certain
matters. These contracts primarily relate to our commercial contracts, operating leases, trademarks, intellectual property, financial
agreements and various other agreements. Under these contracts we may provide certain routine indemnifications relating to
representations and warranties (e.g., ownership of assets, environmental or tax indemnifications) or personal injury matters. The terms
of these indemnifications range in duration and may not be explicitly defined.
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Generally, the maximbm obligation under such indemnifications is not explicitly stated and as a result, the overall amount of these
obligations cannot bé reasonably estimated. Historically, we have not made significant payments for these indemnifications. We
believe that if we werie to incur a loss in any of these matters, the toss would not have a material effect on our financial condition or
results of operations.l

As party to a reinsurance pool for workers' compensation, general liability and automobile liability, we have guarantees with a maximum
exposure of $92 million.

Note K: Relatéd Party Transactions

We generally use a co:mpetitive bidding process for construction of new stores, expansions, relocations and major remodels (major store
projects). In addition, we utilize a construction industry standard stipulated sum, non-exclusive agreement with our general contractors.
As of January 31, 200111, we had 41 general contractors qualified to competitively bid in North America. Fisher Development, Inc. (“FDI"),
a company that is thlly owned by the brother of Donald G. Fisher and the brother's immediate family, is one of our gualified general
contractors. The stipul“ated sum agreement sets forth the terms under which our general contractors, including FDI, may act in connection
with our construction ‘;activities. We paid approximately $4.2 million to FDI in fiscal 2003 for major store projects and other projects, which
represents 16% of our total spend for all projects in fiscal 2003. On January 31, 2004, and February 1, 2003, amounts due to FDI were
approximately $650,000 and $1.3 million, respectively. We paid $871 million and $416 million to FDI in fiscal 2002 and fiscal 2001,
respectively. The Audi:t and Finance Committee of the Board reviews this relationship annually.
|

In October 2001, the Audit and Finance Committee of the Board reviewed and approved the terms of agreements to lease to Doris F
Fisher and Donald G. %Fisher a total of approximately 26,000 sguare feet of space in our One Harrison and Two Folsom corporate San
Francisco locations tol display portions of their personal art collection. The agreements provide for base rent ranging from $30.00 to
$42.35 per square foot per year over a 15-year term. We believe that these rental rates were at least competitive when the agreement
was entered into and ;are currently above-market rates in San Francisco's commercial real estate market. The agreements alsc provide
us and our employees|significant benefits, including use of the space on a regular basis for corporate functions. In addition, Mr. and Mrs.
Fisher allow employees to visit the galleries at no charge.

We are a party to a rélocation services agreement with an independent refocation company (the “Relocation Company”) pursuant to
which eligible employ:'ees receive certain relocation assistance and related services. In addition to assisting employees in finding
appropriate housing m the San Francisco Bay Area, the agreement provides for the Relocation Company to purchase a transferring
employee's former res;idence at an appraised value or price offered by a third party buyer. Following execution of a purchase agreement
between the Relocatio:n Company and the transferring employee, the Relocation Company pays to the transferring employee an amount
egual to all or part of t:he employee's equity in the residence. The funds to make these payments are provided by the company and are
repaid to us by the Relocation Company from the proceeds of sale of the residence to a third party buyer, if available. The Relocation
Company receives from us a minimal fee for services provided to each employee and reimbursement for any direct costs incurred in
connection with the pLiJrchase of an employee’s home, including any difference in the purchase price paid by the Relocation Company to
the employee and the|amount received by the Relocation Company upon sale of the residence 1o a third party buyer. Any gain received
by the Relocation Corjnpany on the sale of a residence to a third party buyer is credited toward the direct costs payable by us. In
connection with the rejlocations of Messrs. Pressler and Pollitt, we paid to the Relocation Company $245,001 and $78,809, respectively.
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QUARTERLY INFORMATION

(Unaudited)

Financial Data

{In millions except

Fiscal 2003

13 Weeks Ended

13 Weeks Ended

13 Weeks Ended

13 Weeks Ended

52 Weeks Ended

per share amounts) May 3, 2003 Aug. 2, 2003 Nov. 1, 2003 Jan. 31, 2004 Jan. 31, 2004
Net sales $ 3,353 $ 3,685 $ 3,929 $ 4,887 $ 15,854
Gross profit 1,277 1,326 1,527 1,838 5,968
Net earnings 202 209 263 356 1,030
Earnings per share—basic 0.23 0.23 0.29 0.40 1.15
Earnings per share—diluted 0.22 0.22 0.28 0.37 1.09
Fiscal 2002
(In millions except 13 Weeks Ended 13 Weeks Ended 13 Weeks Ended 13 Weeks Ended 52 Weeks Ended
per share amounts) May 4, 2002 Aug. 3, 2002 Nov. 2, 2002 Feb. 1, 2003 Feb. 1, 2003
Net sales $ 2,891 $ 3,268 $ 3,645 $ 4,651 $ 14,455
Gross profit 879 1,091 1,316 1,627 4,913
Net earnings 37 57 138 248 477
Earnings per share—basic 0.04 0.07 0.15 0.28 0.65
Earnings per share—diluted 0.04 0.06 0.15 0.27 0.54
Per Share Data
Market Prices Cash Dividends Paid (a)
Fiscal 2003 2002 2003 2002
High Low High Low
1st Quarter $ 16.97 $ 12.01 $ 1590 $ 11.85 $0.0222 $0.0222
2nd Quarter 19.63 16.24 17.14 9.10 0.0222 0.0222
3rd Quarter 21.29 16.99 13.45 8.35 0.0222 0.0222
4th Quarter 23.47 18.15 16.756 12.25 0.0222 0.0222
Year $0.0888 $0.0888

The principal markets on which our stock is traded are the New York Stock Exchange and the Pacific Exchange. The number of holders of record of our stock as of March 15, 2004,

was 10,575.

{a) Our $750 million secured revolving credit facility restricts cash dividends to an amount not in excess of $.0888 per year per share, with such per share amount to be adjusted
ratably in respect to common stock distributions to holders of our equity interests, recapitalizations, stock splits or any similar event.
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board of directors

GAP INC.

Good corporate
governance rineans
going beyond
compliance.

For us, that means teilking a
leadership role in instituting and
maintaining strong bdjsiness
ethics and corporate igovernance
practices. A majority iof our Board
is independent of the company
and management. Olr directors
make a significant tirﬁe
commitment to ensujre the Board
is actively engaged. fhe company
and our Board are co%mitted o
maintaining open con?ﬁmunication

with our shareholders. O

. HOWARD P. BEHAR, 59 ™

Director since 2003. Former Starbucks Corporation
executive. Director of Shurgard Storage Centers, Inc.
and Starbucks Corporation.

. ADRIAN D. P. BELLAMY, 62 ™

Director since 1995. Executive Chairman of The Body
Shop International plc, a personal care retailer. Chairman
of Gueci Group NV and Reckitt Benckiser pic. Director
of Williams-Sonoma, Inc. and The Robert Mondavi
Corporation.

. DONALD G. FISHER, 75

Chairman of the company since 1963. Mr. Fisher will
assume the role of Founder and Chairman Emeritus
effective after the company’s 2004 annual meeting of
shareholders. Director of The Charles Schwab
Corporation. (Donald G. Fisher and Doris F. Fisher are
husband and wife.)

. DORIS F. FISHER, 72

Director since 1969. Former merchandiser of the
company. (Donald G. Fisher and Doris F. Fisher are
husband and wife,)
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5. ROBERT J. FISHER, 49
Director since 1990. Mr. Fisher will assume the role
of Chairman (a non-empioyee position) effective after

the company's 2004 annual meeting of shareholders.
Director of Sun Microsystems, Inc.

6. GLENDA A. HATCHETT, 52 *
Director since 1999. Judge on the syndicated television
program, "Judge Hatchett." Director of HCA Inc.

7. PENELOPE L. HUGHES, 44 **
Director since 2002. Former Coca-Cola Company
axecutive. Director of Trinity Mirror ple, Vodafane plc
and Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB.

8. BOB L. MARTIN, 55 ™
Lead Independent Directar. Director since 2002.
independent Consultant. Director of Edgewater
Technology, Inc., Dillard's, Inc., Furniture Brands
International, Inc. and Sabre Holdings Corporation.

9. JORGE P. MONTOYA, 57
Director since 2004. President Globai Snacks &
Beverages$ and President Latin America of The Procter
& Gamble Company, a consumer products company.
Director of Rohm & Haas Co.

GAP INC. 2003 ANNUAL REPORT

10.

1.

12.

13.

59

PAUL S. PRESSLER, 47
Director since 2002. President and Chief Executive
Officer of the company.

JAMES M. SCHNEIDER, 50 *

Director since 2003. Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of Dell Inc., a computer manufacturer.
Director of General Communication Inc.

CHARLES R. SCHWAB, 65

Director since 1986. Chairman of The Charles Schwab
Corporation, a financial services firm. Director of Siebel
Systems, Inc. Not standing for re-election in 2004.

MAYO A. SHATTUCK Ill, 49 *

Director since 2002. Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer of Constellation Energy Group, an
energy company. Director of Capital One Financial
Corporation.

MARGARET C. WHITMAN, 47 ™

Director since 2003. President and CEO of eBay, Inc.,
an online retail company. Director of eBay, inc. and
The Procter & Gamble Company.

¥ Audit and Finance Committee
1t Compensation and Management Development Cammittee
+ Governance, Nominating and Social Responsibility Committee




“executive lsadership team

' NICHOLAS J. CULLEN GARY P. MUTO
Executive Vice President President
Chief Supply Chain Officer Gap

Gap Inc.

ANNE B. GUST
Executive Vice President

Chief Administrative Officer and

Chief Compliance Officer
Gap Inc.

MARKA HANSEN
President
Banana Republic

CYNTHIA HARRISS
President
Gap Inc. Outlet

TOBY LENK
President
Gap Inc. Direct

JENNY J. MING
President
Old Navy

Executive Officer Note:

BYRON POLLITT
Executive Vice President
Chief Financial Officer
Gap Inc.

PAUL S. PRESSLER
President

Chief Executive Officer
Gap Inc.

ANDREW ROLFE
President
International

EVA SAGE-GAVIN
Executive Vice President
Human Resources

Gap Inc.

MICHAEL B. TASOOJI
Executive Vice President
Chief Information Officer
Gap Inc.

Founder Donald G. Fisher and Executive Leadership Team members Cullen, Gust, Ming,
Muto, Pollitt, Pressier and Sage-Gavin are the executive officers of the company under
Rule 3b-7 and Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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Gap Inc. Corporate Offices
Two Folsom Street, San Francisco, CA 94105
650-952-4400, gapinc.com

Annual Meeting
The annual meeting of shareholders will be held at 10:00 a.m., Wednesday, May 12, 2004, at the Delancey Street Foundation Town Hall,
800 Embarcadero, San Francisco, CA 94107.

Common Stock
Our common stock is listed for trading on the New York Stock Exchange and the Pacific Exchange, ticker symbol “GPS."

sorperate Information

GAP INC.
Fiscal 2004 Earnings Release Dates
1st quarter: 2nd quarter: 3rd quarter: 4th quarter and fiscal year:
May 20, 2004 August 18, 2004 November 18, 2004 February 24, 2005

We broadcast our quarterly earnings results via conference call and a real-time webcast available to the general public at gapinc.com.
The broadcasts begin shortly after the market closes on each earnings release date.

Independent Auditors
Deloitte & Touche LLP
San Francisco, CA

Corporate Governance

Gap Inc. was founded in 1969 on the principle of conducting our business in a responsible, honest and ethical manner. In an effort to
provide open communication and transparency to our shareholders about issues of social responsibility, we will publish our first social
responsibility report in early 2004, available online at gapinc.com. To contact our Board of Directors directly regarding any corporate
governance matter, send an email to board@gap.com. These emails are received and reviewed by our Chairman-Elect and our Lead
Independent Director as well as the company's Corporate Governance department.
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Shareholder Assistance

Registered Shareholders

(shares held by you in? your name)

Questions about yow:' statement, dividend payments, registration changes, lost stock certificates, stock holdings or related matters
should be directed toj the Transfer Agent and Registrar: Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., Shareowner Services, 161 North Concord Exchange
Street, South St. Paul], MN 55075-1139, Toll-free 877-262-8250, Fax 651-450-4033, wellsfargo.com/shareownerservices.

Beneficial Sharehollders

(shares held by your b:roker in the name of the brokerage house)
|

Questions should be directed to your broker on all administrative matters.

shareholder Intormation

GAP INC.

Shareholder Cor:nmunications

Annual Report on Fiorm 10-K

A copy of our Annual :Report to the Securities and Exchange Commission {Form 10-K) for our mast recent fiscal year will be available to
shareholders without jcharge (except exhibits, which will be available for a nominal charge) after April 2, 2004, by visiting our Web site at
gapinc.com, by ca\linb 800-GAP-NEWS (800-427-6397), or by making a written request to investor Relations at our corporate offices.

Investor Relations }

Two Folsom Street, Sén Francisco, CA 94105

Investor_relations@gap.com, 800-GAP-NEWS
|

Our Investor Relations Hotline, 800-GAP-NEWS, provides recorded highlights from the most recent guarter and month, as well as
upcoming news release dates. The toll-free line is accessible from within the United States. International callers can access the Hotline
by dialing 706-634-4421.

Web Sites ,

You can access compény information through our corperate Web site at gapinc.com. The site offers information about Gap Inc., as well
as online versions of}our Annual Report, Securities and Exchange Commission reports, quarterly earnings results and monthly sales
reports. You can also bbtain information about employment opportunities with us and read about our ethical sourcing efforts, corporate
governance matters, énvironmental principles and community relations programs.

Product information isj available through our brand Web sites at gap.com, BananaRepublic.com and oldnavy.com.
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